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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, DC 20549

FORM 10-Q

x QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended June 30, 2014

OR

¨ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from                      to                      

Commission file number 333-173824-103 (Aviv REIT, Inc.)

Commission file number 333-173824 (Aviv Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership)

AVIV REIT, INC.

AVIV HEALTHCARE PROPERTIES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
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(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Maryland (Aviv REIT, Inc.)

Delaware (Aviv Healthcare Properties Limited

Partnership)

27-3200673 (Aviv REIT, Inc.)

35-2249166 (Aviv Healthcare Properties Limited

Partnership)
(State or Other Jurisdiction of

Incorporation or Organization)

(I.R.S. Employer

Identification No.)

303 W. Madison Street, Suite 2400

Chicago, Illinois 60606
(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant�s telephone number, including area code: (312) 855-0930

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was
required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if
any, every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§
232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to
submit and post such files).    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer,
or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting
company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large Accelerated Filer ¨ Accelerated Filer ¨

Non-Accelerated Filer x  (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company ¨
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act).    Yes  ¨    No  x

As of July 31, 2014, Aviv REIT, Inc. had 47,248,463 shares of common stock outstanding, $0.01 par value per share.
As of July 31, 2014, Aviv Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership had 11,416,426 OP units outstanding.
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This combined Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q is being filed by Aviv REIT, Inc., or AVIV, and Aviv Healthcare
Properties Limited Partnership, or the Partnership. Unless the context requires otherwise or except as otherwise noted,
as used herein the words �we,� the �Company,� �us� and �our� refer to AVIV and AVIV�s controlled subsidiaries and the
Partnership and the Partnership�s controlled subsidiaries collectively, as the operations of the two aforementioned
entities are materially comparable for the periods presented.

AVIV is a real estate investment trust, or REIT, and the sole general partner of the Partnership. The Partnership�s
capital is comprised of units of beneficial interest, or OP units. As of June 30, 2014, AVIV owned 80.5% of the
economic interest in the Partnership, with the remaining interest being owned by other investors. The other investors
may redeem their OP units for cash or, at the election of AVIV, for shares of AVIV�s common stock, on a one-for-one
basis. As the sole general partner of the Partnership, AVIV has exclusive control of the Partnership�s day-to-day
management.

The Company believes combining the Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q of AVIV and the Partnership into this single
report provides the following benefits:

� enhances investors� understanding of AVIV and the Partnership by enabling investors to view the business as
a whole in the same manner as management views and operates the business;

� eliminates duplicative disclosure and provides a more streamlined and readable presentation because a
substantial portion of the disclosure in this report applies to both AVIV and the Partnership; and

� creates time and cost efficiencies through the preparation of one combined report instead of two separate
reports.

Management operates AVIV and the Partnership as one business. The management of AVIV consists of the same
employees as the management of the Partnership.

The Company believes it is important for investors to understand the few differences between AVIV and the
Partnership in the context of how AVIV and the Partnership operate as a consolidated company. AVIV is a REIT,
whose only material asset is its ownership of OP units of the Partnership. As a result, AVIV does not conduct business
itself, other than acting as the sole general partner of the Partnership, issuing public equity from time to time and
guaranteeing unsecured debt of the Partnership. AVIV has not issued any indebtedness, but has guaranteed all of the
unsecured debt of the Partnership. The Partnership indirectly holds all the real estate assets of the Company. Except
for net proceeds from public equity issuances by AVIV, which are contributed to the Partnership in exchange for OP
units, the Partnership generates all remaining capital required by the Company�s business. The sources of the
remaining capital include the operations of the Partnership�s direct and indirect subsidiaries, its direct or indirect
incurrence of indebtedness, and the issuance of OP units.

As general partner with control of the Partnership, AVIV consolidates the Partnership for financial reporting purposes.
The presentation of stockholders� equity and partners� capital are the main areas of difference between the consolidated
financial statements of AVIV and those of the Partnership. The Partnership�s capital consists of OP units that are
owned by AVIV and the other investors. AVIV�s stockholders� equity consists of common stock, additional paid in
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capital and retained earnings (accumulated deficit). The OP units held by the other investors in the Partnership are
presented as �noncontrolling interests-operating partnership� in AVIV�s consolidated financial statements. There was no
difference between the assets and liabilities or net income of AVIV and the Partnership as of and for the three and six
month periods ended June 30, 2014.

In order to highlight the few differences between AVIV and the Partnership, there are sections in this report that
discuss AVIV and the Partnership separately, including separate financial statements and controls and procedures
sections. In the sections that combine disclosure for AVIV and the Partnership, this report refers to actions or holdings
as being actions or holdings of the Company. Although the Partnership is generally the entity that enters into
contracts, holds assets and issues debt, we believe that reference to the Company in this context is appropriate because
the business is one enterprise and the Company operates the business through the Partnership.

2
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AVIV REIT, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(unaudited)

(in thousands except share data)

June 30,
2014

December 31,
2013

Assets
Income producing property
Land $ 159,238 $ 138,150
Buildings and improvements 1,325,129 1,138,173
Assets under direct financing leases 11,234 11,175

1,495,601 1,287,498
Less accumulated depreciation (166,356) (147,302) 
Construction in progress and land held for development 19,273 23,292

Net real estate 1,348,518 1,163,488
Cash and cash equivalents 49,056 50,764
Straight-line rent receivable, net 42,274 40,580
Tenant receivables, net 2,516 1,647
Deferred finance costs, net 18,614 16,643
Secured loan receivables, net 36,736 41,686
Other assets 16,670 15,625

Total assets $ 1,514,384 $ 1,330,433

Liabilities and equity
Secured loan $ 13,537 $ 13,654
Unsecured notes payable 652,527 652,752
Line of credit �  20,000
Accrued interest payable 14,797 15,284
Dividends and distributions payable 21,077 17,694
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 11,101 10,555
Tenant security and escrow deposits 24,613 21,586
Other liabilities 10,296 10,463

Total liabilities 747,948 761,988
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Equity:
Stockholders� equity
Common stock (par value $0.01; 47,190,078 and 37,593,910 shares issued and
outstanding, as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively) 472 376
Additional paid-in-capital 721,297 523,658
Accumulated deficit (104,788) (89,742) 

Total stockholders� equity 616,981 434,292
Noncontrolling interests - operating partnership 149,455 134,153

Total equity 766,436 568,445

Total liabilities and equity $ 1,514,384 $ 1,330,433

See accompanying notes.

4
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AVIV REIT, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(unaudited)

(in thousands except share and per share data)

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Revenues
Rental income $ 41,440 $ 33,874 $ 81,862 $ 67,514
Interest on secured loans and financing lease 1,076 1,082 2,162 2,141
Interest and other income 674 77 1,041 79

Total revenues 43,190 35,033 85,065 69,734
Expenses
Interest expense incurred 11,991 8,578 24,112 21,022
Amortization of deferred financing costs 975 805 1,956 1,706
Depreciation and amortization 10,439 8,099 19,948 16,097
General and administrative 6,271 3,446 11,664 17,283
Transaction costs 1,048 460 2,593 696
Loss on impairment �  �  862 �  
Reserve for uncollectible secured loans and
other receivables 3,496 16 3,500 30
Loss (gain) on sale of assets, net 9 225 13 (39) 
Loss on extinguishment of debt 501 �  501 10,974

Total expenses 34,730 21,629 65,149 67,769

Net income 8,460 13,404 19,916 1,965
Net income allocable to noncontrolling
interests - operating partnership (1,699) (3,257) (4,306) (560) 

Net income allocable to common
stockholders $ 6,761 $ 10,147 $ 15,610 $ 1,405

Earnings per common share:
Basic:
Net income allocable to common
stockholders $ 0.15 $ 0.27 $ 0.37 $ 0.05
Diluted:
Net income allocable to common
stockholders $ 0.14 $ 0.26 $ 0.36 $ 0.04
Weighted average common shares
outstanding:
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Basic 45,745,874 37,271,273 41,728,111 29,937,107
Diluted 59,366,873 51,154,412 55,173,714 38,166,793

Dividends declared per common share $ 0.36 $ 0.36 $ 0.72 $ 0.684
See accompanying notes.
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AVIV REIT, INC.

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(unaudited)

(in thousands except share data)

Stockholders� Equity

Common Stock Additional
Paid-In-
Capital

Accumulated
Deficit

Total
Stockholders�

Equity

Noncontrolling
Interests -
Operating

Partnership
Total

EquityShares Amount
Balance at January 1,
2014 37,593,910 $ 376 $ 523,658 $ (89,742) $ 434,292 $ 134,153 $ 568,445
Non-cash stock-based
compensation �  �  2,632 �  2,632 �  2,632
Shares issued for
settlement of vested
stock and exercised
stock options, net 223,197 2 3,051 �  3,053 �  3,053
Distributions to partners �  �  �  �  �  (8,264) (8,264) 
Capital contributions �  �  �  �  �  60 60
Proceeds from issuance
of common stock 9,200,000 92 221,628 �  221,720 �  221,720
Cost of raising capital �  �  (10,470) �  (10,470) �  (10,470) 
Dividends to
stockholders �  �  �  (30,656) (30,656) �  (30,656) 
Conversion of OP Units 172,971 2 1,990 �  1,992 (1,992) �  
Adjustment of
noncontrolling
interests-operating
partnership ownership �  �  (21,192) �  (21,192) 21,192 �  
Net income �  �  �  15,610 15,610 4,306 19,916

Balance at June 30, 2014 47,190,078 $ 472 $ 721,297 $ (104,788) $ 616,981 $ 149,455 $ 766,436

See accompanying notes.

6

Edgar Filing: AVIV REIT, INC. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 12



Table of Contents

AVIV REIT, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(unaudited)

(in thousands)

Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013

Operating activities
Net income $ 19,916 $ 1,965
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 19,948 16,097
Amortization of deferred financing costs 1,956 1,706
Accretion of debt premium (264) (248) 
Straight-line rental income, net (1,694) (4,224) 
Rental income from intangible amortization, net (407) (732) 
Non-cash stock-based compensation 2,632 10,392
Loss (gain) on sale of assets, net 13 (39) 
Non-cash loss on extinguishment of debt 494 5,161
Loss on impairment 862 �  
Reserve for uncollectible secured loan and other receivables 3,500 30
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Tenant receivables (1,157) (2,273) 
Other assets (1,251) 625
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (3,180) (2,915) 
Tenant security deposits and other liabilities 3,479 (4,047) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 44,847 21,498

Investing activities
Purchase of real estate (187,070) (25,626) 
Proceeds from sales of real estate 622 2,606
Capital improvements (5,266) (7,916) 
Development projects (10,719) (10,498) 
Secured loan receivables received from others 5,034 2,361
Secured loan receivables funded to others (3,295) (2,707) 

Net cash used in investing activities (200,694) (41,780) 

See accompanying notes.
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AVIV REIT, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

(unaudited)

(in thousands)

Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013

Financing activities
Borrowings of debt $ 98,000 $ 145,000
Repayment of debt (118,078) (353,165) 
Payment of financing costs (4,566) (5,283) 
Capital contributions 17 425
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 221,720 303,600
Cost of raising capital (10,470) (25,387) 
Shares issued for settlement of vested stock and exercised stock options, net 3,053 �  
Cash distributions to partners (8,330) (11,951) 
Cash dividends to stockholders (27,207) (35,567) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 154,139 17,672

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,708) (2,610) 
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of period 50,764 17,876

End of period $ 49,056 $ 15,266

Supplemental cash flow information
Cash paid for interest $ 25,156 $ 23,050

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activity
Accrued dividends payable to stockholders $ 17,000 $ �  
Accrued distributions payable to partners $ 4,077 $ 27
Write-off of straight-line rent receivable $ 1,380 $ �  
Write-off of deferred financing costs, net $ 501 $ 5,161

See accompanying notes.
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AVIV HEALTHCARE PROPERTIES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(unaudited)

(in thousands)

June 30,
2014

December 31,
2013

Assets
Income producing property
Land $ 159,238 $ 138,150
Buildings and improvements 1,325,129 1,138,173
Assets under direct financing leases 11,234 11,175

1,495,601 1,287,498
Less accumulated depreciation (166,356) (147,302) 
Construction in progress and land held for development 19,273 23,292

Net real estate 1,348,518 1,163,488
Cash and cash equivalents 49,056 50,764
Straight-line rent receivable, net 42,274 40,580
Tenant receivables, net 2,516 1,647
Deferred finance costs, net 18,614 16,643
Secured loan receivables, net 36,736 41,686
Other assets 16,670 15,625

Total assets $ 1,514,384 $ 1,330,433

Liabilities and partners� capital
Secured loan $ 13,537 $ 13,654
Unsecured notes payable 652,527 652,752
Line of credit �  20,000
Accrued interest payable 14,797 15,284
Distributions payable 21,077 17,694
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 11,101 10,555
Tenant security and escrow deposits 24,613 21,586
Other liabilities 10,296 10,463

Total liabilities 747,948 761,988
Partners� capital:
Partners� capital 766,436 568,445

Total liabilities and partners� capital $ 1,514,384 $ 1,330,433
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AVIV HEALTHCARE PROPERTIES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Consolidated Statements of Operations

(unaudited)

(in thousands except unit and per unit data)

Three Months Ended June 30, Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Revenues
Rental income $ 41,440 $ 33,874 $ 81,862 $ 67,514
Interest on secured loans and financing lease 1,076 1,082 2,162 2,141
Interest and other income 674 77 1,041 79

Total revenues 43,190 35,033 85,065 69,734
Expenses
Interest expense incurred 11,991 8,578 24,112 21,022
Amortization of deferred financing costs 975 805 1,956 1,706
Depreciation and amortization 10,439 8,099 19,948 16,097
General and administrative 6,271 3,446 11,664 17,283
Transaction costs 1,048 460 2,593 696
Loss on impairment �  �  862 �  
Reserve for uncollectible secured loans and
other receivables 3,496 16 3,500 30
Loss (gain) on sale of assets, net 9 225 13 (39) 
Loss on extinguishment of debt 501 �  501 10,974

Total expenses 34,730 21,629 65,149 67,769

Net income $ 8,460 $ 13,404 $ 19,916 $ 1,965

Earnings per unit:
Basic:
Net income allocable to units $ 0.15 $ 0.27 $ 0.37 $ 0.05
Diluted:
Net income allocable to units $ 0.14 $ 0.26 $ 0.36 $ 0.04
Weighted average units outstanding:
Basic 57,200,336 49,209,693 53,236,524 36,269,087
Diluted 59,366,873 51,154,412 55,173,714 38,166,793

Distributions declared per unit $ 0.36 $ 0.36 $ 0.72 $ 0.684
See accompanying notes.
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AVIV HEALTHCARE PROPERTIES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Partners� Capital

(unaudited)

(in thousands)

Partners�
Capital

Balance at January 1, 2014 $ 568,445
Non-cash stock (unit)-based compensation 2,632
Units issued for settlement of vested units and exercised unit options, net 3,053
Distributions to partners (38,920) 
Capital contributions 60
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 221,720
Cost of raising capital (10,470) 
Net income 19,916

Balance at June 30, 2014 $ 766,436

See accompanying notes.
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AVIV HEALTHCARE PROPERTIES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(unaudited)

(in thousands)

Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013

Operating activities
Net income $ 19,916 $ 1,965
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 19,948 16,097
Amortization of deferred financing costs 1,956 1,706
Accretion of debt premium (264) (248) 
Straight-line rental income, net (1,694) (4,224) 
Rental income from intangible amortization, net (407) (732) 
Non-cash stock (unit)-based compensation 2,632 10,392
Loss (gain) on sale of assets, net 13 (39) 
Non-cash loss on extinguishment of debt 494 5,161
Loss on impairment 862 �  
Reserve for uncollectible loans and other receivables 3,500 30
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Tenant receivables (1,157) (2,273) 
Other assets (1,251) 625
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (3,180) (2,915) 
Tenant security deposits and other liabilities 3,479 (1,951) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 44,847 23,594

Investing activities
Purchase of real estate (187,070) (25,626) 
Proceeds from sales of real estate 622 2,606
Capital improvements (5,266) (7,916) 
Development projects (10,719) (10,498) 
Secured loan receivables received from others 5,034 2,361
Secured loan receivables funded to others (3,295) (2,707) 

Net cash used in investing activities (200,694) (41,780) 

See accompanying notes.
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AVIV HEALTHCARE PROPERTIES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

(unaudited)

(in thousands)

Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013

Financing activities
Borrowings of debt $ 98,000 $ 145,000
Repayment of debt (118,078) (353,165) 
Payment of financing costs (4,566) (5,283) 
Capital contributions 17 425
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 221,720 303,600
Cost of raising capital (10,470) (25,387) 
Units issued for settlement of vested stock and exercised unit options, net 3,053 �  
Cash distributions to partners (35,537) (47,518) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 154,139 17,672

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,708) (514) 
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of period 50,764 15,534

End of period $ 49,056 $ 15,020

Supplemental cash flow information
Cash paid for interest $ 25,156 $ 23,050

Supplemental disclosure of noncash activity
Accrued distributions payable to partners $ 21,077 $ 27
Write-off of straight-line rent receivable $ 1,380 $ �  
Write-off of deferred financing costs, net $ 501 $ 5,161

See accompanying notes.
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AVIV REIT, INC.

AVIV HEALTHCARE PROPERTIES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2014

(unaudited)

1. Description of Operations and Formation

Aviv REIT, Inc., a Maryland corporation (AVIV or the REIT), is the sole general partner of Aviv Healthcare
Properties Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership, and its subsidiaries (the Partnership). The Partnership
is a majority owned subsidiary that indirectly owns all of the real estate properties. In these footnotes, the Company
refers generically to AVIV, the Partnership, and their subsidiaries. The Partnership was formed in 2010 and directly or
indirectly owned or leased 304 properties, principally skilled nursing facilities (SNFs), across the United States at
June 30, 2014. The Company is a fully integrated self-administered real estate investment trust that owns, acquires,
develops and generates the majority of its revenues by entering into long-term triple-net leases with qualified local,
regional, and national operators. In addition to the base rent, leases provide for operators to pay the Company an
ongoing escrow for real estate taxes. Furthermore, all operating and maintenance costs of the buildings are the
responsibility of the operators. Substantially all depreciation expense reflected in the consolidated statements of
operations relates to the ownership of real estate properties.

The Partnership is the general partner of Aviv Healthcare Properties Operating Partnership I, L.P. (the Operating
Partnership), a Delaware limited partnership, and the sole stockholder of Aviv Healthcare Capital Corporation, a
Delaware corporation. The Operating Partnership has five wholly owned subsidiaries: Aviv Financing I, L.L.C. (Aviv
Financing I), a Delaware limited liability company; Aviv Financing II, L.L.C. (Aviv Financing II), a Delaware limited
liability company; Aviv Financing III, L.L.C. (Aviv Financing III), a Delaware limited liability company; Aviv
Financing IV, L.L.C. (Aviv Financing IV), a Delaware limited liability company; and Aviv Financing V, L.L.C. (Aviv
Financing V), a Delaware limited liability company.

All of the business, assets and operations of the Company are held by the Partnership and its subsidiaries. The REIT�s
equity interest in the Partnership is linked to future investments in the REIT, such that future equity issuances by the
REIT (pursuant to the Partnership�s partnership agreement) will result in a corresponding increase in the REIT�s equity
interest in the Partnership. The REIT is authorized to issue 300 million shares of common stock (par value $0.01) and
25 million shares of preferred stock (par value $0.01). The REIT was funded in September 2010 with 13.2 million
shares and approximately $235 million from one of the REIT�s stockholders, and approximately 8.5 million additional
shares of common stock were issued by the REIT in connection with $159 million of equity contributions by one of
the REIT�s stockholders. The Partnership�s capital consists of partnership units, referred to as OP units, which are
owned by AVIV and other investors.

On March 7, 2013, the Board of Directors and stockholders of the REIT approved an increase in the number of
authorized shares of common stock to 300,000,000 shares of common stock and a 60.37-for-one split of issued and
outstanding common stock. The increase in the authorized shares and the stock split became effective on March 8,
2013 when the REIT�s charter was amended for such increase in the number of authorized REIT shares and the stock
split. The common share and per common share amounts in these consolidated financial statements and notes to
consolidated financial statements have been retrospectively restated to reflect the 60.37-for-one split.
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On March 26, 2013, the REIT completed an initial public offering (IPO) of its common stock pursuant to a
registration statement filed with the SEC, which became effective on March 20, 2013. The Company received net
proceeds, after underwriting discounts and commissions, of $282.3 million, exclusive of other costs of raising capital
in consideration for the issuance and sale of approximately 15.2 million shares of common stock (which included
approximately 2.0 million shares sold to the underwriters upon exercise of their option to purchase additional shares to
cover over-allotments) at a price to the public of $20.00 per share. In connection with the IPO, the Partnership�s
existing Class A, B, C, D and F Units were converted into a single class of OP units.

Immediately prior to the completion of the IPO, there were outstanding approximately 21.7 million shares of common
stock of the REIT, limited partnership units of the Partnership which were converted into approximately 11.9 million
OP units in connection with the IPO, and 125 shares of preferred stock of the REIT. On April 15, 2013, the 125 shares
of preferred stock outstanding were redeemed. At June 30, 2014, there were approximately 47.2 million shares of
common stock outstanding and 11.4 million OP units outstanding, which OP units are redeemable for cash or, at the
REIT�s option, for shares of common stock of the REIT. The operating results of the Partnership are allocated based
upon the REIT�s and the limited partners� respective economic interests therein. The REIT�s ownership of the
Partnership was 80.5% and 76.4% as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The REIT�s weighted
average economic ownership of the Partnership for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were
79.9%, 78.4%, 75.7%, and 71.5% respectively.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

This report combines the Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2014 of AVIV and the
Partnership. AVIV is a real estate investment trust (REIT) and the general partner of the Partnership. The Partnership�s
capital is comprised of OP units. As the sole general partner of the Partnership, AVIV has exclusive control of the
Partnership�s day-to-day management.

The Company believes combining the Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q of AVIV and the Partnership into this single
report provides the following benefits:

� enhances investors� understanding of AVIV and the Partnership by enabling investors to view the business as
a whole in the same manner as management views and operates the business;

� eliminates duplicative disclosure and provides a more streamlined and readable presentation since a
substantial portion of the disclosure in this report applies to both AVIV and the Partnership; and

� creates time and cost efficiencies through the preparation of one combined report instead of two separate
reports.

Management operates AVIV and the Partnership as one business. The management of AVIV consists of the same
employees as the management of the Partnership.

The Company believes it is important for investors to understand the few differences between AVIV and the
Partnership in the context of how AVIV and the Partnership operate as a consolidated company. AVIV is a REIT,
whose only material asset is its ownership of OP units of the Partnership. As a result, AVIV does not conduct business
itself, other than acting as the sole general partner of the Partnership, issuing public equity from time to time and
guaranteeing unsecured debt of the Partnership. AVIV has not issued any indebtedness, but has guaranteed all of the
unsecured debt of the Partnership. The Partnership indirectly holds all the real estate assets of the Company. Except
for net proceeds from public equity issuances by AVIV, which are contributed to the Partnership in exchange for OP
units, the Partnership generates all remaining capital required by the Company�s business. The sources of the
remaining capital include the operations of the Partnership�s direct and indirect subsidiaries, its direct or indirect
incurrence of indebtedness, and the issuance of OP units.

As general partner with control of the Partnership, AVIV consolidates the Partnership for financial reporting purposes.
The presentation of stockholders� equity and partners� capital are the main areas of difference between the consolidated
financial statements of AVIV and those of the Partnership. AVIV�s stockholders� equity is comprised of common stock,
additional paid in capital and retained earnings (accumulated deficit). The Partnership�s capital is comprised of OP
units that are owned by AVIV and other investors. The OP units held by the other investors in the Partnership are
presented as part of partners� capital in the Partnership�s consolidated financial statements and as �noncontrolling
interests-operating partnership� in AVIV�s consolidated financial statements. There is no difference between the assets
and liabilities or net income of AVIV and the Partnership as of June 30, 2014.

Edgar Filing: AVIV REIT, INC. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 26



The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management in accordance
with US generally accepted accounting principles, (US GAAP), for interim financial information and with the
instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions
have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

The Company manages its business as a single business segment as defined in Accounting Standards Codification
(ASC) 280, Segment Reporting. The Company has one reportable segment consisting of investments in healthcare
properties, consisting primarily of SNFs, assisted living facilities, (ALFs), and other healthcare properties located in
the United States. All of the Company�s properties generate similar types of revenues and expenses related to tenant
rent and reimbursements and operating expenses.

Quarterly Reporting

The accompanying unaudited financial statements and notes of the Company as of June 30, 2014 and for the three and
six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 have been prepared in accordance with US GAAP for interim financial
information. Accordingly, certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements
prepared under US GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to US GAAP quarterly reporting rules. In the
opinion of management, all adjustments considered necessary for a fair presentation of the Company�s balance sheets,
statements of operations, statement of changes in equity/partners� capital, and statements of cash flows have been
included and are of a normal and recurring nature. These consolidated financial statements should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes for the Company for the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012, and 2011. The consolidated statements of operations and cash flows for the periods ended June 30, 2014
and 2013 are not necessarily indicative of full year results.
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The balance sheets at December 31, 2013 have been derived from the audited financial statements at that date, but do
not include all of the information and footnotes required by US GAAP for complete financial statements. For further
information, including definitions of capitalized terms not defined herein, refer to the consolidated financial
statements and footnotes thereto included in the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and highly liquid short-term investments with original maturities of three
months or less. The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents in United States banking institutions that exceed
amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Company believes the risk of loss from exceeding
this insured level is minimal.

Real Estate Investments

The Company periodically assesses the carrying value of real estate investments and related intangible assets in
accordance with ASC 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment (ASC 360), to determine if facts and circumstances exist
that would suggest that assets might be impaired or that the useful lives should be modified. In the event impairment
in value occurs and a portion of the carrying amount of the real estate investments will not be recovered in part or in
whole, a provision will be recorded to reduce the carrying basis of the real estate investments and related intangibles
to their estimated fair value. The estimated fair value of the Company�s rental properties is determined by using
customary industry standard methods that include discounted cash flow and/or direct capitalization analysis (Level 3)
or estimated cash proceeds received upon the anticipated disposition of the asset from market comparables (Level 2).
As part of the impairment evaluation, the buildings in the following locations were impaired to reflect the estimated
fair values (Level 2).

For the Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013

(in thousands)
Willmar, MN $ 862 $ �  

$ 862 $  �  

Purchase Accounting

The Company allocates the purchase price of facilities between net tangible and identified intangible assets acquired
and liabilities assumed as a result of the Company purchasing the business and subsequently leasing the business to
unrelated third party operators. The Company makes estimates of the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets
and acquired liabilities using information obtained from multiple sources as a result of pre-acquisition due diligence,
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marketing, leasing activities of the Company�s operator base, industry surveys of critical valuation metrics such as
capitalization rates, discount rates and leasing rates and appraisals (Level 3). The Company allocates the purchase
price of facilities to net tangible and identified intangible assets and liabilities acquired based on their fair values in
accordance with the provisions of ASC 805, Business Combinations (ASC 805). The determination of fair value
involves the use of significant judgment and estimation.

The Company determines fair values as follows:

� Real estate investments are valued using discounted cash flow projections that assume certain future revenue
and costs and consider capitalization and discount rates using current market conditions.

� The Company allocates the purchase price of facilities to net tangible and identified intangible assets
acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair values.

� Other assets acquired and other liabilities assumed are valued at stated amounts, which approximate fair
value.

� Assumed debt balances are valued at fair value, with the computed discount/premium amortized over the
remaining term of the obligation.
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The Company determines the value of land based on third party appraisals. The fair value of in-place leases, if any,
reflects: (i) above and below-market leases, if any, determined by discounting the difference between the estimated
current market rent and the in-place rentals, the resulting intangible asset or liability of which is amortized to rental
revenue over the remaining life of the associated lease plus any fixed rate renewal periods if applicable; (ii) the
estimated value of the cost to obtain operators, including operator allowances, operator improvements, and leasing
commissions, which is amortized over the remaining life of the associated lease; and (iii) an estimated value of the
absorption period to reflect the value of the rents and recovery costs foregone during a reasonable lease-up period as if
the acquired space was vacant, which is amortized over the remaining life of the associated lease. The Company also
estimates the value of operator or other customer relationships acquired by considering the nature and extent of
existing business relationships with the operator, growth prospects for developing new business with such operator,
such operator�s credit quality, expectations of lease renewals with such operator, and the potential for significant,
additional future leasing arrangements with such operator. The Company amortizes such value, if any, over the
expected term of the associated arrangements or leases, which would include the remaining lives of the related leases.
The amortization is included in the consolidated statements of operations in rental income for above or below market
leases or depreciation and amortization expense for in-place lease assets. Generally, the Company�s purchase price
allocation of the purchased business and subsequent leasing of the business to unrelated third party operators does not
include an allocation to any intangible assets or intangible liabilities, as they are either immaterial or do not exist.

Revenue Recognition

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease when collectability is reasonably
assured. Differences between rental income earned and amounts due under the lease are charged or credited, as
applicable, to straight-line rent receivable, net. Income recognized from this policy is titled straight-line rental income.
Additional rents from expense reimbursements for insurance, real estate taxes, and certain other expenses are
recognized in the period in which the related expenses are incurred and the net impact is reflected in rental income on
the consolidated statements of operations.

Below is a summary of the components of rental income for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
(in thousands):

Three
Months Ended Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Cash rental income $ 41,243 $ 32,017 $ 79,761 $ 62,558
Straight-line rental income, net 58 1,491 1,694 4,224
Rental income from intangible amortization, net 139 366 407 732

Total rental income $ 41,440 $ 33,874 $ 81,862 $ 67,514

The Company�s reserve for uncollectible operator receivables is included as a component of reserve for uncollectible
secured loans and other receivables in the consolidated statements of operations.

Lease Accounting
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The Company, as lessor, makes a determination with respect to each of its leases whether they should be accounted
for as operating leases or direct financing leases. The classification criteria is based on estimates regarding the fair
value of the leased facilities, minimum lease payments, effective cost of funds, the economic life of the facilities, the
existence of a bargain purchase option, and certain other terms in the lease agreements. Payments received under
operating leases are accounted for in the statements of operations as rental income for actual rent collected plus or
minus a straight-line adjustment for estimated minimum lease escalators. Assets subject to operating leases are
reported as real estate investments in the consolidated balance sheets. For facilities leased as direct financing
arrangements, an asset equal to the Company�s net initial investment is established on the balance sheet titled assets
under direct financing leases. Payments received under the financing lease are bifurcated between interest income and
principal amortization to achieve a consistent yield over the stated lease term using the interest method. Principal
amortization (accretion) is reflected as an adjustment to the asset subject to a financing lease.

All of the Company�s leases contain fixed or formula-based rent escalators. To the extent that the escalator increases
are tied to a fixed index or rate, lease payments are accounted for on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.
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Deferred Finance Costs

Deferred finance costs are being amortized using the straight-line method, which approximates the interest method,
over the term of the respective underlying debt agreement.

Secured Loan Receivables

Secured loan receivables consist of capital improvement loans and secured loans to operators. Capital improvement
loans represent the financing provided by the Company to the operator to acquire furniture, fixtures, and equipment
while the operator is operating the facility. Secured loans to operators represent financing provided by the Company to
operators for working capital needs. Secured loan receivables are carried at their principal amount outstanding.
Management periodically evaluates outstanding secured loans and notes receivable for collectability on a loan-by-loan
basis. When management identifies potential loan impairment indicators, such as nonpayment under the loan
documents, impairment of the underlying collateral, financial difficulty of the operator, or other circumstances that
may impair full execution of the loan documents, and management believes it is probable that all amounts will not be
collected under the contractual terms of the loan, the loan is written down to the present value of the expected future
cash flows. Loan impairment is monitored via a quantitative and qualitative analysis including credit quality indicators
and it is reasonably possible that a change in estimate could occur in the near term. As of June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively, secured loan receivable reserves amounted to approximately $3.2 million and $0,
respectively. No other circumstances exist that would suggest that additional reserves are necessary at the balance
sheet dates other than as disclosed in Footnote 4, Secured Loan Receivables.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company follows ASC 718, Stock Compensation (ASC 718) in accounting for its stock-based payments. This
guidance requires measurement of the cost of employee services received in exchange for stock compensation based
on the grant-date fair value of the employee stock awards. This cost is recognized as compensation expense ratably
over the employee�s requisite service period. Incremental compensation costs arising from subsequent modifications of
awards after the grant date must be recognized when incurred. Additionally, the Company must make estimates
regarding employee forfeitures in determining compensation expense. Subsequent changes in actual experience are
monitored and estimates are updated as information is available. The non-cash stock-based compensation expense
incurred by the Company through June 30, 2014 is summarized in Footnote 12, Equity Compensation Plan.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (ASC 820), establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for
disclosure of fair value measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the
valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. A financial instrument�s categorization within the
valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The three
levels are defined as follows:

� Level 1�Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets;

� Level 2�Inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active
markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially
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the full term of the financial instrument; and

� Level 3�Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.
Cash and cash equivalents are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets at amounts considered by
management to reasonably approximate fair value. Management estimates the fair value of its long-term debt using a
discounted cash flow analysis based upon the Company�s current borrowing rate for debt with similar maturities and
collateral securing the indebtedness. The Company had outstanding secured loans, unsecured notes payable, and a line
of credit with a carrying value of approximately $666.1 million and $686.4 million as of June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively. The fair values of debt as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 were $707.0
million and $705.8 million, respectively, based upon interest rates available to the Company on similar borrowings
(Level 3). Management estimates the fair value of its secured loan receivables using a discounted cash flow analysis
based upon the Company�s current interest rates for secured loan receivables with similar maturities and collateral
securing the indebtedness. The Company had outstanding secured loan receivables with a carrying value of
approximately $36.7 million and $41.7 million as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. The fair
values of secured loan receivables as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 approximate their carrying value based
upon interest rates available to the Company on similar borrowings.
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Income Taxes

For federal income tax purposes, the Company elected, with the filing of its initial Form 1120 REIT, U.S. Income Tax
Return for U.S. Real Estate Investment Trusts, to be taxed as a REIT effective as of our taxable year ending
December 31, 2010. To qualify as a REIT, the Company must meet certain organizational, income, asset and
distribution tests. The Company currently is in compliance with these requirements and intends to maintain REIT
status. If the Company fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, the Company will be subject to federal income
taxes at regular corporate rates (including any applicable alternative minimum tax) and may not elect REIT status for
four subsequent years. However, the Company may still be subject to federal excise tax. In addition, the Company
may be subject to certain state and local income and franchise taxes. Historically, the Company and its predecessor
have generally only incurred certain state and local income and franchise taxes, but these amounts were immaterial in
each of the periods presented. Prior to September 2010, the Partnership was taxed as a limited partnership and the
consolidated operating results were included in the income tax returns of the individual partners. No uncertain income
tax positions exist as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

Noncontrolling Interests�Operating Partnership / Partnership Units

Noncontrolling interests�operating partnership, as presented on AVIV�s consolidated balance sheets, represent OP units
held by individuals and entities other than AVIV.

Noncontrolling interests�operating partnership, which can be settled by issuance of unregistered shares of AVIV�s
common stock are reported in the equity section of the consolidated balance sheets of AVIV. They are adjusted for
income, losses and distributions allocated to OP units not held by AVIV. Adjustments to noncontrolling
interests�operating partnership are recorded to reflect increases or decreases in the ownership of the Partnership by
holders of OP units as a result of the redemptions of OP units for cash or, at the election of AVIV, in exchange for
shares of AVIV�s common stock.

Prior to the IPO, the capital structure of the Company�s operating partnership consisted of six classes of partnership
units, each of which had different capital accounts and each of which was entitled to different distributions. In
connection with the IPO, each class of units of the Partnership was converted into an aggregate of 11,938,420 OP
units held by investors other than AVIV in the Partnership. As of June 30, 2014, there were 11,443,312 OP units
outstanding.

Earnings Per Share of the REIT

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income allocable to common shares for the period by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is calculated by
dividing the net income allocable to common shares for the period by the weighted average number of common and
dilutive securities outstanding during the period.

Earnings Per Unit of the Partnership

Basic earnings per unit is calculated by dividing the net income allocable to units for the period by the weighted
average number of OP units outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per unit is calculated by dividing the net
income allocable to OP units for the period by the weighted average number of units and dilutive securities
outstanding during the period.

Risks and Uncertainties
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The Company is subject to certain risks and uncertainties affecting the healthcare industry as a result of healthcare
legislation and continuing regulation by federal, state, and local governments. Additionally, the Company is subject to
risks and uncertainties as a result of changes affecting operators of nursing home facilities due to the actions of
governmental agencies and insurers to limit the growth in cost of healthcare services.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-08, Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals
of Components of an Entity (ASU No. 2014-08). ASU No. 2014-08 changes the definition of a discontinued operation
to include only those disposals of components of an entity that represent a strategic shift that has (or will have) a
major effect on an entity�s operations and financial results. ASU No. 2014-08 is effective prospectively for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2014 and is available for early adoption as of January 1, 2014. The Company adopted
the provisions of ASU No. 2014-08 as of January 1, 2014 and incorporated the provisions of this update to its
condensed consolidated financial statements upon adoption. The adoption of ASU No. 2014-08 did not have a
material impact on the Company�s financial condition or results of operations.
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In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which creates a new
Topic,Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606 (Topic 606). The standard is principle-based and provides a
five-step model to determine when and how revenue is recognized. The core principle is that a company should
recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This standard is
effective for interim or annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016 and allows for either full retrospective or
modified retrospective adoption. Early adoption of this standard is not allowed. The Company is currently evaluating
the impact the adoption of Topic 606 will have on its financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current financial statement presentation, with no
effect on the Company�s consolidated financial position or results of operations.

3. Real Estate Assets

2014 Acquisitions

The Company had the following acquisitions during the six months ended June 30, 2014 as described below:

Month Acquired Property Type Location
Purchase Price
(in thousands)

January SNF/ALF/ILF MN $ 40,000
January SNF TX 15,920
March SNF IA 13,500
March SNF KY 35,000
April SNF FL 6,000
April SNF TX 53,700
May SNF TX 3,600
May SNF CA 13,350
June SNF KY 6,000

187,070
February Land Held for Development TX 2,110

$ 189,180

The following table illustrates the effect on total revenues and net income as if we had consummated the acquisitions
as of January 1, 2013 (in thousands, unaudited):

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Total revenues $ 43,259 $ 39,936 $ 88,291 $ 79,539
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Net income 8,819 16,352 23,708 8,474
For the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, revenues attributable to the acquired assets in 2014 were
approximately $4.8 million and $6.6 million and net income attributable to the acquired assets was approximately $2.6
million and $2.7 million, respectively, recognized in the consolidated statements of operations.

Transaction-related costs are not expected to have a continuing significant impact on our financial results and
therefore have been excluded from these pro forma results. Related to the above acquisitions, the Company incurred
$0.5 million and $1.7 million of transaction costs for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, respectively.
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In accordance with ASC 805, the Company allocated the approximate net purchase price paid for these properties
acquired in 2014 as follows (in thousands):

Land $ 21,090
Buildings and improvements 150,210
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15,770
Land held for development 2,110

Borrowings and available cash $ 189,180

The Company�s purchase price allocation for the 2014 acquisitions and subsequent leasing of assets does not include
an allocation to any intangible assets or intangible liabilities, as these amounts are either immaterial or do not exist.

The Company considers renewals on above- or below-market leases when ascribing value to the in-place lease
intangible liabilities at the date of a property acquisition. In those instances where the renewal lease rate pursuant to
the terms of the lease does not adjust to a current market rent, the Company evaluates whether the stated renewal rate
is above or below current market rates and considers the past and current operations of the property, the current rent
coverage ratio of the operator, and the number of years until potential renewal option exercise. If renewal is
considered probable based on these factors, an additional lease intangible liability is recorded at acquisition and
amortized over the renewal period.

2014 Dispositions

For the three months ended June 30, 2014, the Company disposed of one property for a total sales price of $0.1
million, and the Company recognized a net loss on sale of approximately $8,500. The total sales price and net loss are
net of transaction costs incurred in relation to the closings at the time of disposition.

For the six months ended June 30, 2014, the Company disposed of two properties for a total sales price of $0.6
million, and the Company recognized a net loss on sale of approximately $13,000. The total sales price and net loss
are net of transaction costs incurred in relation to the closings at the time of disposition.

Construction in Process

The following summarizes the Company�s construction in progress and land held for development during the six
months ended June 30, 2014 (in thousands):

June 30, 2014
Beginning balance, January 1 $ 23,292
Additions 12,576
Placed in service (16,595) 

$ 19,273
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During 2014 and 2013, the Company capitalized expenditures for improvements related to various construction and
reinvestment projects. In 2014, the Company placed into service four completed investment projects at four properties
located in California, Pennsylvania, and Texas. In 2013, the Company placed into service one completed investment
project at one property located in California. In accordance with ASC 835, Capitalization of Interest (ASC 835), the
Company capitalizes interest based on the average cash balance of construction in progress for the period using the
weighted-average interest rate on all outstanding debt, which approximated 7.0% for the three and six months ended
June 30, 2014. The balance of capitalized interest within construction in progress at June 30, 2014 and December 31,
2013 was $0.3 million and $0.8 million, respectively. The amount capitalized during the three and six months ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013, relative to interest incurred was $0.1 million, $0.3 million, $0.1 million, and $0.2 million,
respectively.
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4. Secured Loan Receivables

The following summarizes the Company�s secured loan receivables, net activity during the six months ended June 30,
2014 (in thousands):

June 30, 2014
Capital

Improvement
Loans

Secured
Operator

Loans
Total
Loans

Beginning balance, January 1, 2014 $ 17,664 $ 24,022 $ 41,686
New loans issued �  3,295 3,295
Reserve for uncollectible secured loans �  (3,211) (3,211) 
Loan amortization and repayments (737) (4,297) (5,034) 

$ 16,927 $ 19,809 $ 36,736

Interest income on secured loans and financing leases for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 (in
thousands):

Three Months Ended

June 30,

Six Months
Ended

June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Capital improvement loan receivable $ 460 $ 401 $ 925 $ 797
Secured operator loan receivables 248 317 503 618
Direct financing lease 368 364 734 726

Total interest on secured loans and financing lease $ 1,076 $ 1,082 $ 2,162 $ 2,141

The Company�s reserve on a loan-by-loan basis for uncollectible secured loan receivables balances at June 30, 2014
and December 31, 2013 was approximately $3.2 million and $0, respectively, and any movement in the reserve is
reflected in reserve for uncollectible loan and other receivables in the consolidated statements of operations. The gross
balance of secured loan receivables for which a reserve on a loan-by-loan basis for uncollectible secured loan
receivables has been applied was approximately $3.2 million and $0, at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively.

During 2014 and 2013, the Company funded loans for both working capital and capital improvement purposes to
various operators. All loans held by the Company accrue interest and are recorded as interest income unless the loan is
deemed impaired in accordance with Company policy. The payments received from the operator cover both interest
accrued as well as amortization of the principal balance due. Any payments received from the operator made outside
of the normal loan amortization schedule are considered principal prepayments and reduce the outstanding loan
receivables balance.
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5. Deferred Finance Costs

The following summarizes the Company�s deferred finance costs at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 (in
thousands):

June 30,
2014

December 31,
2013

Gross amount $ 25,506 $ 21,881
Accumulated amortization (6,892) (5,238) 

Net $ 18,614 $ 16,643

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, the Company wrote-off deferred financing costs of approximately
$0.8 million with approximately $0.3 million of accumulated amortization associated with the refinancing of the
Company�s secured Revolving Credit Facility (as defined below) to a new unsecured revolving credit facility for the
net recognition as loss on extinguishment of debt of approximately $0.5 million.
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6. Intangible Assets and Liabilities

The following summarizes the Company�s intangible assets and liabilities classified as part of other assets or other
liabilities at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively (in thousands):

Assets
June 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

Gross Amount
Accumulated
Amortization Net Gross Amount

Accumulated
Amortization Net

Above market leases $ 5,777 $ (3,002) $ 2,775 $ 6,437 $ (3,452) $ 2,985
In-place lease assets 652 (163) 489 652 (130) 522
Operator relationship 212 (42) 170 212 (34) 178

$ 6,641 $ (3,207) $ 3,434 $ 7,301 $ (3,616) $ 3,685

Liabilities
June 30, 2014 December 31, 2013

Gross
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization Net Gross Amount

Accumulated
Amortization Net

Below market leases $ 13,233 $ (6,286) $ 6,947 $ 17,623 $ (10,059) $ 7,564
Amortization expense for in-place lease assets and operator relationship was $0.02 million, $0.04 million, $0.02
million and $0.04 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, and is included as
a component of depreciation and amortization in the consolidated statements of operations. Amortization expense for
the above market leases intangible asset for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was
approximately $0.09 million, $0.2 million, $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively, and is included as a component
of rental income in the consolidated statements of operations. Accretion for the below market leases intangible
liability for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 was approximately $0.2 million, $0.6 million,
$0.5 million and $1.0 million, respectively, and is included as a component of rental income in the consolidated
statements of operations.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, the Company wrote-off fully amortized above market leases
intangible assets of approximately $0 and $0.7 million, respectively, and fully amortized below market leases
intangible liabilities of approximately $0 and $4.4 million, respectively, for a net recognition of $0 and $0 in rental
income from intangible amortization. These write-offs were the result of fully amortized assets and fully accreted
liabilities.

7. Leases

As of June 30, 2014, the Company�s portfolio of investments consisted of 304 healthcare facilities, located in 29 states
and operated by 39 third party operators. At June 30, 2014, approximately 48.3% (measured as a percentage of total
assets) were leased by five private operators: Saber Health Group (12.9%), Daybreak Healthcare (11.2%),
Fundamental (9.5%), Maplewood (7.9%), and EmpRes (6.8%). No other operator represents more than 5.1% of the
Company�s total assets. The five states in which the Company had its highest concentration of total assets were Texas
(19.5%), Ohio (13.7 %), California (12.2%), Connecticut (7.1%), and Pennsylvania (5.1%), at June 30, 2014.
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For the six months ended June 30, 2014, the Company�s rental income from operations totaled approximately $81.9
million of which approximately $11.3 million was from Daybreak Healthcare (13.8%), $10.8 million from Saber
Health Group (13.2%), and $6.2 million from EmpRes (7.5%). No other operator generated more than 6.7% of the
Company�s rental income from operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014.
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8. Debt

The Company�s secured loans, unsecured notes payable and line of credit consisted of the following (in thousands):

June 30,
2014

December 31,
2013

HUD loan (interest rate of 5.00% on June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013), inclusive of a $2.4 million and
$2.4 million premium balance at June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, respectively $ 13,537 $ 13,654
2019 Notes (interest rate of 7.75% on June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013), inclusive of $2.5 million and $2.8
million net premium balance, respectively 402,527 402,752
2021 Notes (interest rate of 6.00% on June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013) 250,000 250,000
Revolving Credit Facility (interest rate of 2.52% on
December 31, 2013) �  20,000

Total $ 666,064 $ 686,406

The Company used approximately $118.0 million of the net proceeds from the Equity Offering (as defined below) to
repay all outstanding indebtedness under the Revolving Credit Facility.

2019 Notes

On February 4, 2011, April 5, 2011 and March 28, 2012, the Partnership and Aviv Healthcare Capital Corporation
(the Issuers) issued $200 million, $100 million and $100 million of 7 3/4% Senior Notes due in 2019 (the 2019
Notes), respectively. The REIT is a guarantor of the Issuers� 2019 Notes. The 2019 Notes are unsecured senior
obligations of the Issuers and will mature on February 15, 2019 and bear interest at a rate of 7.75% per annum,
payable semiannually to holders of record at the close of business on the February 1 or the August 1 immediately
preceding the interest payment date on February 15 and August 15 of each year, commencing August 15, 2011.
Premiums of approximately $2.75 million and $1.0 million were associated with the offerings of the $100 million of
2019 Notes on April 5, 2011 and the $100 million of 2019 Notes on March 28, 2012, respectively. The premiums will
be amortized as an adjustment to the yield on the 2019 Notes over their term. The Company used the proceeds to,
amongst other things, pay down the outstanding balance of previous credit facilities during 2012.

2021 Notes

On October 16, 2013, the Issuers issued $250 million of 6% Senior Notes due in 2021 (2021 Notes). The REIT is a
guarantor of the Issuers� 2021 Notes. The 2021 Notes are unsecured senior obligations of the Issuers and will mature
on October 15, 2021 and bear interest at a rate of 6.00% per annum, payable semiannually to holders of record at the
close of business on the April 1 or the October 1 immediately preceding the interest payment date on April 15 and
October 15 of each year, commencing April 15, 2014. The Company used the net proceeds to, amongst other things,
pay down approximately $135.0 million of the outstanding indebtedness under the Revolving Credit Facility during
2013.
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Credit Facility

On March 26, 2013, the Company, through Aviv Financing IV, entered into a $300 million secured revolving credit
facility and $100 million term loan with Bank of America (collectively, the Revolving Credit Facility). On April 16,
2013, the Company converted the entire $100 million term loan into a secured revolving credit facility, thereby
terminating the term loan and any availability thereunder and increasing the amount available under the secured
revolving credit facility from $300 million to $400 million. On each payment date, the Company paid interest only in
arrears on any outstanding principal balance. The interest rate was based on LIBOR plus a margin of 235 basis points
to 300 basis points depending on the Company�s leverage ratio. Additionally, an unused fee equal to 50 basis
points per annum of the daily unused balance on the Revolving Credit Facility was payable quarterly in arrears.

On May 14, 2014, the Company terminated the Revolving Credit Facility and, through Aviv Healthcare Properties,
LP, entered into a new $600 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the Credit Facility). The Credit Facility has a
rate that ranges from 170 to 225 basis points over LIBOR depending on the Company�s consolidated leverage and a
maturity date of May 14, 2018. The Credit Facility can be extended for an additional year at the Company�s option,
subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions, and contains an accordion feature increasing the borrowing capacity to
$800 million. As of June 30, 2014, the Credit Facility had a balance of $0.
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Other Loans

On June 15, 2012, a subsidiary of Aviv Financing III assumed a HUD loan with a balance of approximately $11.5
million. Interest is at a fixed rate of 5.00%. The loan originated in November 2009 with a maturity date of October 1,
2044 and is based on a 35-year amortization schedule. The Company is obligated to pay the remaining principal and
interest payments of the loan. A premium of $2.5 million was associated with the assumption of debt and will be
amortized as an adjustment to interest expense on the HUD loan over its term.

9. Commitments and Contingencies

During 2011, the Company entered into a contractual arrangement with an operator in one of its facilities to reimburse
any liabilities, obligations or claims of any kind or nature resulting from the actions of the former operator in such
facility, Brighten Health Care Group. The Company is obligated to reimburse the fees to the operator if and when the
operator incurs such expenses associated with certain Indemnified Events, as defined therein. The total possible
obligation for these fees is estimated to be $2.3 million, of which approximately $1.9 million has been paid to date.
The remaining $0.4 million was accrued as a component of other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.

The Company has purchase options with one of its tenants that are not exercisable by the tenant until January 1, 2017
for five properties and January 1, 2019 for two properties. If the 2017 pool is not exercised, the tenant loses the right
to exercise the 2019 option. The purchase options call for the purchase price, as defined, to be determined at a future
date. In addition, the Company has purchase options with four tenants on five properties that are exercisable by the
applicable tenant at various times during the terms of the respective leases. Two of such options are exercisable at a
predetermined purchase price and the remaining three call for a purchase price to be determined at a future date.

The Company is involved in various unresolved legal actions and proceedings, which arise in the normal course of our
business. Although the outcome of a particular proceeding can never be predicted, we do not believe that the result of
any of these other matters will have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, liquidity or financial
position.

10. Noncontrolling Interests�Operating Partnership / Partnership Units

Noncontrolling interests�operating partnership, as presented on AVIV�s consolidated balance sheets, represent the OP
units held by individuals and entities other than AVIV. Accordingly, the following discussion related to
noncontrolling interests�operating partnership of the REIT refers equally to OP units of the Partnership.

Holders of OP units are entitled to receive distributions in a per unit amount equal to the per share dividends made
with respect to each share of AVIV�s common stock, if and when AVIV�s Board of Directors declares such a dividend.
Holders of OP units have the right to tender their OP units for redemption, in an amount equal to the fair market value
of AVIV�s common stock. AVIV may elect to redeem tendered OP units for cash or for shares of AVIV�s common
stock. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, OP unitholders redeemed a total of 68,500 and 172,971
OP units in exchange for an equal number of shares of common stock of AVIV.

11. Stockholders� Equity of the REIT and Partners� Capital of the Partnership

Distributions accrued in accordance with declaration to the Partnership�s partners are summarized as follows for the
three months ended June 30, (in thousands):
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Class A Class B Class C Class D Class F OP Units
REIT
Shares

2014 $  �  $  �  $  �  $  �  $  �  $  4,120 $  17,000
2013 $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $ 4,298 $ 14,330
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Distributions accrued in accordance with declaration to the Partnership�s partners are summarized as follows for the six
months ended June 30, (in thousands):

Class A Class B Class C Class D Class F OP Units
REIT
Shares

2014 $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $ �  $ 8,264 $ 30,656
2013 $ 2,797 $ 97 $ 146 $ �  $ 554 $ 4,584 $ 20,851
In connection with the IPO, each class of limited partnership units of the Partnership were converted into an aggregate
of 21,653,813 OP units held by the REIT and 11,938,420 OP units held by other investors of the Partnership. As a
result, Class A, B, C, D and F Units are no longer outstanding, and the Partnership has had a single class of OP units
since March 26, 2013. As noted above, the OP units held by other investors in the Partnership are redeemable for cash
or, at the REIT�s election, unregistered shares of the REIT�s common stock on a one-for-one basis. The
weighted-average units outstanding for each class of units are summarized as follows for the three months ended
June 30:

Class A Class B Class C Class D Class F OP Units
REIT
Shares

2014 �  �  �  �  �  11,486,502 45,713,834
2013 �  �  �  �  �  11,938,420 37,271,273
The weighted-average units outstanding for each class of units are summarized as follows for the six months ended
June 30:

Class A Class B Class C Class D Class F OP Units
REIT
Shares

2014 �  �  �  �  �  11,509,439 41,727,085
2013 6,324,386 2,124,129 �  3,780 1,260,865 6,331,980 29,937,107
During the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 the Company had the following equity and capital activity:

� AVIV issued an aggregate of 16,361 and 0 shares of common stock in connection with the Company�s
annual grant of unrestricted stock to management, respectively;

� AVIV issued an aggregate of 16,618 and 70,000 shares of common stock in connection with the
Company�s annual grant of unrestricted and restricted stock to its Board of Directors, respectively;

� AVIV reserved for issuance an aggregate of 144,905 and 0 shares of common stock in connection with
the Company�s annual grant of restricted stock to employees, respectively;
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� AVIV issued 15,180,000 shares in connection with the IPO on March 26, 2013 that resulted in
proceeds to the Company, net of underwriting discounts, commissions, advisory fees and other
offering costs of $282.3 million;

� AVIV issued 9,200,000 shares on April 15, 2014 in connection with an underwritten public offering of
shares of AVIV�s common stock that resulted in proceeds to the Company, net of underwriting
discounts, commissions, advisory fees and other offering costs of $211.3 million (the Equity Offering);

� OP unit holders redeemed a total of 172,971 and 0 OP units in exchange for an equal number of shares
of AVIV�s common stock, respectively; and

� AVIV issued 174,467 and 0 shares of common stock in connection with an option exercise,
respectively.
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For the six months ended June 30, 2014, AVIV declared the following cash dividends on its common stock, of which
the Partnership declared equivalent distributions on its OP units:

Declaration Date
Record

Date
Amount Per

Share
Dividend Payment

Date
March 18, 2014 March 31, 2014 $ 0.36 April11, 2014
May 27, 2014 June 27, 2014 $ 0.36 July11, 2014

Total $ 0.72

12. Equity Compensation Plan

Prior to September 2010, the Partnership had established an officer incentive program linked to its future value. Class
D units were periodically granted to employees of Aviv Asset Management, L.L.C. (AAM), a subsidiary of the
Operating Partnership. Part of the Class D Units are defined as performance-based awards under ASC 718 and require
employment of the recipient on the date of sale, disposition, or refinancing. If the employee is no longer employed on
such date, the award is forfeited. The remainder of the Class D Units were time-based awards under ASC 718 and
such fair value determined on the grant date was recognized over the vesting period. On March 26, 2013, the
performance component Class D Units vested and along with time based units were converted to OP units in
connection with the IPO, and $0.9 million of expense was recognized.

Restricted Stock Grants

On March 26, 2013 the Company adopted the Aviv REIT, Inc. 2013 Long-Term Incentive Plan (the LTIP). The
purpose of the LTIP is to attract and retain qualified persons upon whom, in large measure, the Company�s sustained
progress, growth and profitability depend, to motivate the participants to achieve long-term Company goals and to
align the participants� interests with those of other stockholders by providing them with a proprietary interest in the
Company�s growth and performance. The Company�s executive officers, employees, consultants and non-employee
directors are eligible to participate in the LTIP. Under the plan, 2,000,000 shares of the Company�s common stock are
available for issuance. The shares can be issued as restricted stock awards (RSAs) or as restricted stock units (RSUs).

During 2013, the Company issued 70,500 RSAs, of which 23,250 shares were issued, vested, and are unrestricted and
47,250 shares were issued and are subject to a vesting period. During the six months ended June 30, 2014, 15,750 of
the 47,250 RSAs vested. Additionally, the Company issued 226,585 RSUs, of which 17,470 were subsequently
forfeited prior to the year ended December 31, 2013. Of these 226,585 RSUs, 16,361 shares were issued and vested in
the six months ended June 30, 2014 and an additional 1,762 RSUs were forfeited. Some of these RSUs are subject to
time vesting, and some are subject to performance vesting. The time-based equity RSUs generally vest over a period
of two to three years, subject to the employee�s continued employment with the Company. The performance-based
RSUs are earned on the basis of Total Shareholder Return (TSR) on the Company�s stock compared to the TSR of a
defined group of peer companies. The first installment of the performance based RSUs are based on the companies
comprising the NAREIT Equity Index and the companies comprising the Bloomberg Healthcare REIT Index for the
performance period beginning on the date of the IPO and ending December 31, 2014. The second installment is based
on the companies comprising the NAREIT Equity Index and the companies comprising the Bloomberg Healthcare
REIT Index for the performance period beginning on the date of the IPO and ending December 31, 2015. If the service
and performance conditions are met, approximately half of the RSUs will vest on December 31, 2014 and the
remaining will vest on December 31, 2015. The RSUs carry dividend equivalent rights that are subject to the same
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vesting terms as the underlying RSUs.

During the six months ended June 30, 2014, the Company issued 144,905 RSUs of which 1,554 have been
forfeited. Some of these RSUs are subject to time vesting and some are subject to performance vesting. The
time-based RSUs cliff vest over a period of three years, subject to the employee�s continued employment with the
Company. The performance-based RSUs cliff vest on the basis of TSR on the Company�s stock compared to the TSR
of a defined group of peer companies. Approximately half of the performance based RSUs are based on the companies
comprising the NAREIT Equity Index for the performance period beginning on January 1, 2014 and ending
December 31, 2016. Approximately half are based on the companies in the Bloomberg Healthcare REIT Index for the
performance period beginning on January 1, 2014 and ending December 31, 2016. If the service and performance
conditions are met, the RSUs will vest on December 31, 2016.

For the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, the Company recognized total non-cash stock-based
compensation expense related to the LTIP of $1.5 million, $2.6 million, $0.04 million, and $0.5 million, respectively.

27

Edgar Filing: AVIV REIT, INC. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 51



Table of Contents

Restricted stock grants vest over specified periods of time as long as the employee remains with the Company. The
following table sets forth the number of unvested shares of restricted stock and the weighted average fair value of
these shares at the date of grant:

Six Months Ended
June 30, 2014 June 30, 2013

Shares
of

Restricted Stock

Weighted Average
Fair Value of
Date of Grant

Shares
of

Restricted Stock

Weighted Average
Fair Value of
Date of Grant

Unvested balance at January 1 256,092 $ 29.93 �  $ �  
Granted 157,106 $ 26.51 70,000 $ 20.00
Vested (1) (40,055) $ 23.06 (22,750) $ 20.00
Forfeited (3,368) $ 29.13 �  $ �  

Unvested balance at June 30 369,775 $ 29.36 47,250 $ 20.00

(1) Includes 7,944 shares which were used to settle minimum employee withholding tax obligations for one
employee of approximately $0.2 million in 2014. A net of 32,111 shares of common stock were delivered in the
six months ended June 30, 2014.

As of June 30, 2014, total unearned compensation on restricted stock was $7.8 million, and the weighted average
vesting period was 1.92 years.

Option Awards

On September 17, 2010, the Company adopted the 2010 Management Incentive Plan (the MIP), which provides for
the grant of option awards. Two-thirds of the options granted under the MIP were performance based awards whose
criteria for vesting is tied to a future liquidity event (as defined) and also contingent upon meeting certain return
thresholds (as defined). The grant date fair value associated with all performance-based award options of the
Company aggregated to approximately $7.4 million at the time of the IPO. One third of the options granted under the
MIP were time based awards and the service period for these options is four years with shares vesting at a rate of 25%
ratably from the grant date.

In connection with the IPO, all options outstanding under the MIP, representing options to purchase 5,870,138 shares
with a weighted average exercise price of $17.47 per share, became fully-vested. In addition, recipients were entitled
to receive dividend equivalents on their options awarded under the MIP. Dividend equivalents were paid on
time-based options on (i) the date of vesting, with respect to any portion of a time-based option that was unvested on
the date the dividend equivalent was accrued, and (ii) the last day of the calendar quarter in which such dividends
were paid to stockholders, with respect to any portion of a time-based option vested as of the date the dividend
equivalent was accrued. Dividend equivalents accrued and unpaid prior to the consummation of the IPO in the
approximate amount of $14.8 million were paid in shares of common stock, net of applicable withholding of
approximately $6.8 million, in an amount based on the IPO price of the common stock. No dividend equivalents will
be paid for any MIP options with respect to periods after the date of the IPO by the Company.
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In connection with the IPO, the holders of option awards under the MIP received a new class of units of LG Aviv
L.P., the legal entity through which Goldberg Lindsay & Co., LLC holds its interest in the REIT, equal to the number
of options held by such persons immediately prior to the consummation of the IPO. Under the limited partnership
agreement of LG Aviv L.P., the units are entitled to receive an aggregate distribution amount equal to 14.9% of the
dividend distributions declared and received by LG Aviv L.P. after the consummation of the IPO in respect of its
shares of common stock. The distribution amount will be paid by LG Aviv L.P. ratably to each holder of such units on
the distribution date in the proportion that the total number of units held by such holder bears to the total outstanding
units of the same class. Any unit payments will be paid, if at all, on the earlier of (i) the last day of the calendar
quarter in which dividends were paid to the Company stockholders and (ii) three business days following the holder�s
termination of employment with the Company. For the six months ended June 30, 2014, $2.4 million was paid by LG
Aviv L.P. to the holders of such units.
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The following table represents the time and performance-based option awards activity for the six months ended
June 30, 2014 and 2013

Six Months Ended
June 30,

2014
June 30,

2013
Outstanding at January 1 5,870,138 1,956,713
Exercised (174,467) �  
Awards vested at IPO �  3,913,425

Outstanding at June 30 5,695,671 5,870,138

Options exercisable at end of period �  �  
Weighted average fair value of options granted $ 2.20 $ 2.20

The following table represents the time and performance based option awards outstanding cumulatively life-to-date
for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 as well as other MIP data:

2014 2013
Range of exercise prices $ 16.56 - $18.87 $ 16.56 - $18.87
Outstanding 5,695,671 5,870,138
Remaining contractual life (years) 6.77 8.05
Weighted average exercise price $ 17.44 $ 17.47

The Company has used the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the grant date fair value of the options. In
connection with the IPO, all options outstanding under the MIP became fully-vested, and the plan was retired. There
were no options awarded in the six months ended June 30, 2014 or 2013.

The Company recorded non-cash compensation expenses of approximately $0, $0, $0, and $9.0 million for the three
and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, related to the time and performance based stock options
accounted for as equity awards, as a component of general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements
of operations.

At June 30, 2014, there is no unrecognized compensation cost to be recognized related to the option awards.

Dividend equivalent rights associated with the MIP that became payable upon vesting amounted to $0, $0, $0 and
$15.4 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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13. Earnings Per Common Share of the REIT

The following table shows the amounts used in computing the basic and diluted earnings per common share (in
thousands except for share and per share amounts).

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Numerator for earnings per
common share�basic:
Net income $ 8,460 $ 13,404 $ 19,916 $ 1,965
Net income allocable to
noncontrolling interests (1,699) (3,257) (4,306) (560) 

Numerator for earnings per
common share�basic $ 6,761 $ 10,147 $ 15,610 $ 1,405

Numerator for earnings per
common share�diluted:
Numerator for earnings per
common share�basic $ 6,761 $ 10,147 $ 15,610 $ 1,405
Net income allocable to
noncontrolling interests�OP units 1,699 3,257 4,306 297

Numerator for earnings per
common share�diluted $ 8,460 $ 13,404 $ 19,916 $ 1,702

Denominator for earnings per
common share�basic and diluted:
Denominator for earnings per
common share�basic 45,715,874 37,271,273 41,728,111 29,937,107
Effect of dilutive securities:
Noncontrolling interests�OP units 11,484,462 11,938,420 11,508,413 6,331,980
Stock options 2,031,963 1,932,841 1,841,567 1,891,604
Restricted stock units 134,574 11,878 95,623 6,102

Denominator for earnings per
common share�diluted 59,366,873 51,154,412 55,173,714 38,166,793

Basic earnings per common
share
Net income allocable to common
stockholders $ 0.15 $ 0.27 $ 0.37 $ 0.05
Diluted earnings per common
share

$ 0.14 $ 0.26 $ 0.36 $ 0.04
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Net income allocable to common
stockholders
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14. Earnings Per Unit of the Partnership

The following table shows the amounts used in computing the basic and diluted earnings per unit (in thousands except
for unit and per unit amounts).

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Numerator for earnings per
unit�basic:
Net income $ 8,460 $ 13,404 $ 19,916 $ 1,965
Net income allocable to limited
partners �  �  �  (263) 

Numerator for earnings per
unit�basic: $ 8,460 $ 13,404 $ 19,916 $ 1,702

Numerator for earnings per
unit�diluted:
Numerator for earnings per
unit�diluted $ 8,460 $ 13,404 $ 19,916 $ 1,702
Denominator for earnings per
unit�basic and diluted:
Denominator for basic earnings
per unit�basic 57,200,336 49,209,693 53,236,524 36,269,087
Effective dilutive securities:
Stock options 2,031,963 1,932,841 1,841,567 1,891,604
Restricted stock units 134,574 11,878 95,623 6,102

Denominator for earnings per
unit�diluted 59,366,873 51,154,412 55,173,714 38,166,793

Basic earnings per unit:
Net income allocable to units $ 0.15 $ 0.27 $ 0.37 $ 0.05
Diluted earnings per unit:
Net income allocable to units $ 0.14 $ 0.26 $ 0.36 $ 0.04

15. Subsequent Events

On July 1, 2014, the Company acquired three properties in Missouri for a purchase price of $16.2 million from an
unrelated third party.

On July 10, 2014, the Company acquired three properties and two land parcels in Massachusetts for a purchase price
of $94.3 million. Sidney and Evelyn Insoft, the parents of Steven Insoft, the Company�s President and Chief Operating
Officer, jointly hold a 50% equity interest in the sellers of the properties, representing a gross economic interest in the
sale of approximately $47.1 million. The Company believes that the terms of the acquisition were fair and reasonable
and reflect terms that the Company would expect to obtain in an arm�s length transaction for comparable properties.

Edgar Filing: AVIV REIT, INC. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 57



The following table illustrates the effect on total revenues and net income as if we had consummated the above
acquisitions, as well as those noted in Note 3, Real Estate Assets, as of January 1, 2013 (unaudited).

For the Three Months Ended For the Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,

2014 2013 2014 2013
Total revenues $ 46,636 $ 43,314 $ 95,046 $ 86,294
Net income 12,071 19,603 30,210 14,976
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16. Condensed Consolidating Information

AVIV and certain of the Partnership�s direct and indirect wholly owned subsidiaries (the Subsidiary Guarantors) fully
and unconditionally guaranteed, on a joint and several basis, the obligation to pay principal and interest with respect to
our 2019 Notes and 2021 Notes issued in February 2011, April 2011, March 2012 and October 2013. The 2019 Notes
and 2021 Notes were issued by the Partnership and Aviv Healthcare Capital Corporation. Separate financial
statements of the guarantors are not provided, as the consolidating financial information contained herein provides a
more meaningful disclosure to allow investors to determine the nature of the assets held by and the operations of the
respective guarantor and non-guarantor subsidiaries. Other wholly owned subsidiaries (Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries)
that were not included among the Subsidiary Guarantors were not obligated with respect to the 2019 Notes and 2021
Notes. The properties held by the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries are subject to mortgages. The following summarizes the
Partnership�s condensed consolidating information as of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 and for the three and
six months ended June 30, 2014, and 2013:

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

As of June 30, 2014

(in thousands)

(unaudited)

Issuers
Subsidiary
Guarantors

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Assets
Net real estate $ 51 $ 1,332,647 $ 15,820 $ �  $ 1,348,518
Cash and cash equivalents 48,021 529 506 �  49,056
Deferred finance costs, net 18,600 �  14 �  18,614
Other 21,562 73,683 2,951 �  98,196
Investment in and due from related
parties, net 1,368,488 �  �  (1,368,488) �  

Total assets $ 1,456,722 $ 1,406,859 $ 19,291 $ (1,368,488) $ 1,514,384

Liabilities and partners� capital
Secured loan $ �  $ �  $ 13,537 $ �  $ 13,537
Unsecured loan 652,527 �  �  �  652,527
Accrued interest payable 14,750 �  47 �  14,797
Dividends and distributions payable 21,077 �  �  �  21,077
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 839 10,103 159 �  11,101
Tenant security and escrow deposits 128 24,233 252 �  24,613
Other liabilities 965 9,331 �  �  10,296

Total liabilities 690,286 43,667 13,995 �  747,948
Total partners� capital 766,436 1,363,192 5,296 (1,368,488) 766,436
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Total liabilites and partners� capital $ 1,456,722 $ 1,406,859 $ 19,291 $ (1,368,488) $ 1,514,384
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

As of December 31, 2013

(in thousands)

(unaudited)

Issuers
Subsidiary
Guarantors

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Assets
Net real estate $ 55 $ 1,148,057 $ 15,376 $ �  $ 1,163,488
Cash and cash equivalents 50,709 (714) 769 �  50,764
Deferred finance costs, net 12,681 3,948 14 �  16,643
Other 25,260 71,372 2,906 �  99,538
Investment in and due from related
parties, net 1,168,729 �  �  (1,168,729) �  

Total assets $ 1,257,434 $ 1,222,663 $ 19,065 $ (1,168,729) $ 1,330,433

Liabilities and partners� capital
Secured loan $ �  $ �  $ 13,654 $ �  $ 13,654
Unsecured loan 652,752 �  �  �  652,752
Line of credit �  20,000 �  �  20,000
Accured interest payable 14,750 487 47 �  15,284
Dividends and distributions payable 17,694 �  �  �  17,694
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,082 8,473 �  �  10,555
Tenant security and escrow deposits 765 20,572 249 �  21,586
Other liabilities 946 9,517 �  �  10,463

Total liabilities 688,989 59,049 13,950 �  761,988
Total partners� capital 568,445 1,163,614 5,115 (1,168,729) 568,445

Total liabilites and partners� capital $ 1,257,434 $ 1,222,663 $ 19,065 $ (1,168,729) $ 1,330,433

33

Edgar Filing: AVIV REIT, INC. - Form 10-Q

Table of Contents 61



Table of Contents

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2014

(in thousands)

(unaudited)

Issuers
Subsidiary
Guarantors

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues
Rental income $ �  $ 41,084 $ 356 $ �  $ 41,440
Interest on secured loans and financing
lease 219 857 �  �  1,076
Interest and other income 400 274 �  �  674

Total revenues 619 42,215 356 �  43,190
Expenses
Interest expense incurred 11,492 359 140 �  11,991
Amortization of deferred financing costs 762 213 �  �  975
Depreciation and amortization 2 10,333 104 �  10,439
General and administrative 2,490 3,767 14 �  6,271
Transaction costs 55 993 �  �  1,048
Reserve for uncollectible secured loan
receivables and other receivables 3,211 285 �  �  3,496
Loss on sale of assets, net �  9 �  �  9
Loss on extinguishment of debt �  501 �  �  501

Total expenses 18,012 16,460 258 �  34,730

Net (loss) income (17,393) 25,755 98 �  8,460
Equity in income (loss) of subsidiaries 25,853 �  �  (25,853) �  

Net income (loss) allocable to units $ 8,460 $ 25,755 $ 98 $ (25,853) $ 8,460
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2013

(in thousands)

(unaudited)

Issuers
Subsidiary
Guarantors

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues
Rental income $ �  $ 32,947 $ 927 $ �  $ 33,874
Interest on secured loans and financing
lease 296 786 �  �  1,082
Interest and other income 4 73 �  �  77

Total revenues 300 33,806 927 �  35,033
Expenses
Interest expense incurred 7,643 793 142 �  8,578
Amortization of deferred financing costs 365 440 �  �  805
Depreciation and amortization 1 7,927 171 �  8,099
General and administrative 929 2,479 38 �  3,446
Transaction costs 117 345 (2) �  460
Reserve for uncollectible secured loan
receivables and other receivables (10) 26 �  �  16
Loss on sale of assets, net �  85 140 �  225
Loss on extinguishment of debt �  �  �  �  �  

Total expenses 9,045 12,095 489 �  21,629

Net (loss) income (8,745) 21,711 438 �  13,404

Equity in income (loss) of subsidiaries 22,149 �  �  (22,149) �  

Net income (loss) allocable to units $ 13,404 $ 21,711 $ 438 $ (22,149) $ 13,404
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2014

(in thousands)

(unaudited)

Issuers
Subsidiary
Guarantors

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues
Rental income $ �  $ 81,154 $ 708 $ �  $ 81,862
Interest on secured loans and financing
lease 448 1,714 �  �  2,162
Interest and other income 474 567 �  �  1,041

Total revenues 922 83,435 708 �  85,065
Expenses
Interest expense incurred 22,666 1,166 280 �  24,112
Amortization of deferred financing costs 1,300 656 �  �  1,956
Depreciation and amortization 4 19,740 204 �  19,948
General and administrative 4,873 6,744 47 �  11,664
Transaction costs 82 2,510 1 �  2,593
Loss on impairment �  862 �  �  862
Reserve for uncollectible secured loan
receivables and other receivables 3,211 289 �  �  3,500
Loss on sale of assets, net �  13 �  �  13
Loss on extinguishment of debt �  501 �  �  501

Total expenses 32,136 32,481 532 �  65,149

Net (loss) income (31,214) 50,954 176 �  19,916
Equity in income (loss) of subsidiaries 51,130 �  �  (51,130) �  

Net income (loss) allocable to units $ 19,916 $ 50,954 $ 176 $ (51,130) $ 19,916
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2013

(in thousands)

(unaudited)

Issuers
Subsidiary
Guarantors

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues
Rental income $ �  $ 65,661 $ 1,853 $ �  $ 67,514
Interest on secured loans and financing
lease 574 1,567 �  �  2,141
Interest and other income 4 75 �  �  79

Total revenues 578 67,303 1,853 �  69,734
Expenses
Interest expense incurred 15,291 5,405 326 �  21,022
Amortization of deferred financing costs 725 981 �  �  1,706
Depreciation and amortization 3 15,751 343 �  16,097
General and administrative 12,321 4,906 56 �  17,283
Transaction costs 182 498 16 �  696
Loss on impairment �  �  �  �  
Reserve for uncollectible secured loan
receivables and other receivables (10) 51 (11) �  30
Gain on sale of assets, net �  375 (414) �  (39) 
Loss on extinguishment of debt �  10,974 �  �  10,974

Total expenses 28,512 38,941 316 �  67,769

Net (loss) income (27,934) 28,362 1,537 �  1,965

Equity in income (loss) of subsidiaries 29,899 �  �  (29,899) �  

Net income (loss) allocable to units $ 1,965 $ 28,362 $ 1,537 $ (29,899) $ 1,965
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2014

(in thousands)

(unaudited)

Issuers
Subsidiary
Guarantors

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Net cash (used in) provided by operating
activities $ 177,998 $ 222,540 $ 305 $ �  $ 44,847
Investing activities
Purchase of real estate �  (187,070) �  �  (187,070) 
Proceeds from sales of real estate �  622 �  �  622
Capital improvements �  (4,776) (490) �  (5,266) 
Development projects �  (10,719) �  �  (10,719) 
Secured loan receivables received from
others 1,329 3,705 �  �  5,034
Secured loan receivables funded to others (236) (3,059) �  �  (3,295) 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities 1,093 (201,297) (490) �  (200,694) 
Financing activities
Borrowings of debt �  98,000 �  �  98,000
Repayment of debt �  (118,000) (78) �  (118,078) 
Payment of financing costs (4,566) �  �  �  (4,566) 
Capital contributions 17 �  �  �  17
Public offering proceeds 221,720 �  �  �  221,720
Cost of raising capital (10,470) �  �  �  (10,470) 
Units issued for settlement of vested stock
and exercised unit options, net 3,053 �  �  �  3,053
Cash distributions to partners (35,537) �  �  �  (35,537) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities 174,217 (20,000) (78) �  154,139

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents (2,688) 1,243 (263) �  (1,708) 
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of period 50,709 (714) 769 �  50,764

End of period $ 48,021 $ 529 $ 506 $ �  $ 49,056
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2013

(in thousands)

(unaudited)

Issuers
Subsidiary
Guarantors

Non-
Guarantor

Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated
Net cash (used in) provided by operating
activities $ (233,400) $ 257,503 $ (509) $ �  $ 23,594
Investing activities
Purchase of real estate �  (25,626) �  �  (25,626) 
Proceeds from sales of real estate �  1,773 833 �  2,606
Capital improvements �  (7,884) (32) �  (7,916) 
Development projects �  (10,498) �  �  (10,498) 
Secured loan receivables received from
others 1,581 780 �  �  2,361
Secured loan receivables funded to others (369) (2,338) �  �  (2,707) 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities 1,212 (43,793) 801 �  (41,780) 
Financing activities
Borrowings of debt �  145,000 �  �  145,000
Repayment of debt �  (353,091) (74) �  (353,165) 
Payment of financing costs �  (5,282) (1) �  (5,283) 
Capital contributions 425 �  �  �  425
Initial public offering proceeds 303,600 �  �  �  303,600
Cost of raising capital (25,387) �  �  �  (25,387) 
Cash distributions to partners (47,518) �  �  �  (47,518) 

Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities 231,120 (213,373) (75) �  17,672

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents (1,068) 337 217 �  (514) 
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of period 16,869 (1,861) 526 �  15,534

End of period $ 15,801 $ (1,524) $ 743 $ �  $ 15,020
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Item 2. MANAGEMENT�S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

Special Note Regarding Forward-looking Statements

The information presented herein includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act) and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the Exchange Act). Forward-looking statements provide our current expectations or forecasts of future
events. Forward-looking statements include statements about our expectations, beliefs, intentions, plans, objectives,
goals, strategies, future events, performance and underlying assumptions and other statements that are not historical
facts. Examples of forward-looking statements include all statements regarding our expected future financial position,
results of operations, cash flows, liquidity, financing plans, business strategy, projected growth opportunities and
potential acquisitions, plans and objectives of management for future operations, and compliance with and changes in
governmental regulations. You can identify forward-looking statements by their use of forward-looking words, such
as �may,� �will,� �anticipate,� �expect,� �believe,� �estimate,� �intend,� �plan,� �should,� �seek� or comparable terms, or the negative use
of those words, but the absence of these words does not necessarily mean that a statement is not forward-looking.

These forward-looking statements are made based on our current expectations and beliefs concerning future events
affecting us and are subject to uncertainties and factors relating to our operations and business environment, all of
which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond our control, that could cause our actual results to differ
materially from those matters expressed in or implied by these forward-looking statements. Important factors, risks
and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include those disclosed
under Part I, Item 1A, �Risk Factors� in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013 and
elsewhere in filings made by us with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC. These factors include,
among others: uncertainties relating to the operations of our operators, including those relating to reimbursement by
government and other third-party payors, compliance with regulatory requirements and occupancy levels; our ability
to successfully engage in strategic acquisitions and investments; competition in the acquisition and ownership of
healthcare properties; our ability to monitor our portfolio; environmental liabilities associated with our properties; our
ability to re-lease or sell any of our properties; the availability and cost of capital; changes in interest rates; the amount
and yield of any additional investments; changes in tax laws and regulations affecting real estate investment trusts
(REITs); and our ability to maintain our status as a REIT.

There may be additional risks of which we are presently unaware or that we currently deem immaterial. You are
cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date as of
which such statements are made. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance. Except as
required by law, we do not undertake any responsibility to release publicly any revisions to these forward-looking
statements to take into account events or circumstances that occur after the date as of which such statements are made
or to update you on the occurrence of any unanticipated events which may cause actual results to differ from those
expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements contained herein.

Overview

Aviv REIT, Inc., or AVIV, is a self-administered REIT, specializing in the ownership of post-acute and long-term
care skilled nursing facilities, or SNFs. AVIV is the sole general partner of Aviv Healthcare Properties Limited
Partnership, or the Partnership. Unless the context requires otherwise or except as otherwise noted, as used herein the
words �we,� the �Company,� �us� and �our� refer to Aviv REIT, Inc., its controlled subsidiaries, Aviv Healthcare Properties
Limited Partnership and its controlled subsidiaries collectively, as the operations of the two aforementioned entities
are materially comparable for the periods presented. We have been in the business of investing in SNFs for over 30
years, including through our predecessors. Our properties are leased through triple-net leases to third-party operators
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who have responsibility for the operation of the facilities. We are entitled to a cash rental stream from these operators
under our leases. Our management team has an extensive track record and knowledge of healthcare real estate. We
believe that we own one of the largest and highest-quality SNF portfolios in the United States. As of June 30, 2014,
our portfolio consisted of 304 properties in 29 states leased to 39 operators who represent many of the largest and
most experienced operators in the industry. We have a geographically diversified portfolio, with no state representing
more than 20.0% of our contractual rent as of June 30, 2014. Our properties are leased to a diversified group of
operators, with no single operator representing more than 12.9% of our contractual rent as of June 30, 2014. When we
refer to the contractual rent of our portfolio, we are referring to the total monthly rent due under all of our triple-net
leases as of the date specified, calculated based on the first full month following the specified date.

As a result of our many years of industry experience, we have developed strong relationships with, and triple-net lease
our properties to, many of the largest and most experienced operators in the United States. We cultivate long-term
relationships with our operators and, as of June 30, 2014, 65% of our properties are leased to operators with whom we
have had a relationship for at least five years, and many of our properties are leased to operators with whom we have
had a relationship for at least ten years. We believe we will continue to access potential new investment opportunities
as a result of our relationships with existing operators and our network of other market-leading operators.
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We structure our triple-net leases to generate attractive returns on a long-term basis. Under our triple-net leases, our
operators are responsible for all operating costs and expenses related to the property, including maintenance and repair
obligations and other capital expenditures. Our leases typically have initial terms of 10 years or more and include
annual rent escalators of approximately 2%. We often enter into lease extensions during the term of the lease in
connection with additional acquisitions, reinvestment projects and other opportunities that arise. Leases representing
99.5% of our contractual rent as of June 30, 2014 are supported by personal and/or corporate guarantees and leases
representing 87.1% of our contractual rent for the same period are master leases or leases with cross-default
provisions, which master leases and cross-default provisions provide us with significant credit support for our rents.
Our leases also typically require security deposits of several months� rent. As of June 30, 2014, 16.5% of our leases are
scheduled to expire before 2019.

We finance investments through borrowings under our credit facility, issuances of unsecured senior notes and equity
securities, project-specific first mortgages or a combination of these methods. We compete with other public and
private companies who provide lease and/or mortgage financing to operators of a variety of different types of
healthcare properties. While the overall landscape for healthcare finance is competitive, we are disciplined and
selective about the investments we make and have a strong track record of identifying qualified operators and
attractive markets in which to invest. We have built a high-quality and strategically-diversified portfolio of operators
and properties.

Factors Affecting Our Business and the Business of Our Operators

The continued success of our business is dependent on a number of macroeconomic and industry trends. Many of
these trends will influence our ongoing ability to find suitable investment properties while other factors will impact
our operators� ability to conduct their operations profitably and meet their obligations to us.

Industry Trends

One of the primary trends affecting our business is the long-term increase in the average age of the U.S. population.
This increase in life expectancy is expected to be a primary driver for growth in the healthcare and SNF industry. We
believe this demographic trend is resulting in an increased demand for services provided to the elderly. We believe
that the low cost healthcare setting of a SNF will benefit our operators and facilities in relation to higher-cost
healthcare providers. We believe that these trends will support a growing demand for the services provided by SNF
operators, which in turn will support a growing demand for our properties.

The growth in demand for services provided to the elderly has resulted in an increase in healthcare spending. The
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services, or CMS, and the Office of the Actuary forecast that U.S. healthcare
expenditures will increase from approximately $2.7 trillion in 2011 to approximately $4.8 trillion in 2021.
Furthermore, according to CMS, national expenditures for SNFs are expected to grow from approximately
$151 billion in 2011 to approximately $255 billion in 2021, representing a compound annual growth rate, or CAGR,
of 5.4%. On July 31, 2013, CMS issued its final rate for fiscal year 2014 Medicare payment rates for SNFs. Based on
the changes contained in the final rule, CMS estimates that total Medicare payments to SNFs will increase by $470
million, or 1.3%, for fiscal year 2014, which began on October 1, 2013.

Liquidity and Access to Capital

Our single largest cost is the interest expense we incur on our debt obligations. In order to continue to expand and
optimize our capital to expand our portfolio, we rely on access to the capital markets on an ongoing basis. We seek to
balance this goal against maintaining ready access to funds to make investments at the time opportunities arise. We
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have extensive experience in and a successful track record of raising debt and equity capital over the past 30 years.

Our indebtedness is comprised principally of the unsecured obligations under our 2019 Notes, our 2021 Notes and our
Credit Facility, each described in further detail under � �Liquidity and Capital Resources�Indebtedness Outstanding�.
Substantially all of such indebtedness is scheduled to mature in 2016 or thereafter.

Factors Affecting Our Operators� Profitability

Our revenues are derived from rents we receive from triple-net leases with our operators. Certain economic factors
present both opportunities and risks to our operators and, therefore, influence their ability to meet their obligations to
us. Our operators� revenues are largely derived from third-party sources. Therefore, we indirectly rely on these same
third-party sources to obtain our rents. The third-party payments include approximately 75%from the federal Medicare
program and state Medicaid programs and approximately 25% from private insurance companies or private-pay
residents. The sources and amounts of our operators� revenues are determined by a number of factors, including
licensed bed capacity, occupancy rates, the healthcare needs of residents and the rate of reimbursement. Changes in
the profile of the residents as well as the mix of payor types, including private pay, Medicare and Medicaid, may
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significantly affect our operators� profitability and, in turn, their ability to meet their obligations to us. Managing,
billing and successfully collecting third-party payments is a relatively complex activity that requires significant
experience and is critical to the successful operation of a SNF. We believe the portfolio occupancy, the quality mix of
our portfolio and resulting reimbursement rates have remained relatively stable over recent years.

Results of Operations

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains unaudited financial statements and other financial data for each of
AVIV and the Partnership. As noted above, AVIV is the sole general partner of the Partnership and, as of June 30,
2014, owned 80.5% of the economic interest in the Partnership. All of the Company�s operations are conducted by the
Partnership which is consolidated by AVIV for financial reporting purposes, and therefore the following information
is the same for AVIV and the Partnership.

Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2014 Compared to Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2013

Revenues

Revenues increased $8.2 million, or 23.3%, from $35.0 million for the three months ended June 30, 2013 to $43.2
million for the same period in 2014. The increase in revenue generally resulted from additional rent associated with
the acquisitions and investments made during 2013 and 2014 and the factors set forth below.

Revenues increased $15.4 million, or 22.0%, from $69.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 to $85.1
million for the same period in 2014. The increase in revenue generally resulted from additional rent associated with
the acquisitions and investments made during 2013 and 2014 and the factors set forth below.

Detailed changes in revenues for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 compared to the same period in 2013
were as follows:

� Rental income increased $7.5 million, or 22.3%, from $33.9 million for the three months ended June 30,
2013 to $41.4 million for the same period in 2014. The increase is primarily due to additional cash rent of
approximately $8.8 million associated with acquisitions and investments made during 2013 and 2014. There
were no material changes to renewed leases or rent increases associated with tenant improvements during the
quarter.

� Rental income increased $14.4 million, or 21.3%, from $67.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013
to $81.9 million for the same period in 2014. The increase is primarily due to additional cash rent of
approximately $15.2 million associated with acquisitions and investments made during 2013 and 2014.
There were no material changes to renewed leases or rent increases associated with tenant improvements for
the six months ended June 30, 2014.

� Interest on secured loans remained materially consistent for the three months ended June 30, 2013 compared
to the same period in 2014.
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� Interest on secured loans remained materially consistent for the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared to
the same period in 2014.

� Interest and other income increased $0.6 million from $0.08 million for the three months ended June 30,
2013 to $0.7 million for the same period in 2014. The increase is primarily due to non-recurring income
from the sale of bed licenses at a facility.

� Interest and other income increased $0.9 million from $0.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 to
$1.0 million for the same period in 2014. The increase is primarily due to non-recurring income from the
sale of bed licenses at two facilities.

Expenses

Expenses increased $13.1 million, or 60.6%, from $21.6 million for the three months ended June 30, 2013 to $34.7
million for the same period in 2014. The increase was primarily due to increases of $3.5 million in reserve for
uncollectible loans and other receivables, $3.4 million in interest expense incurred and $2.8 million in general and
administrative expenses.

Expenses decreased $2.6 million, or 3.9%, from $67.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 to $65.1 million
for the same period in 2014. The decrease was primarily due to decreases of $10.5 million in loss on extinguishment
of debt and $5.6 million in general and administrative expenses, offset by increases of $3.9 million in depreciation and
amortization, $3.5 million in reserve for uncollectible loans and other receivables and $3.1 million in interest expense
incurred.
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Detailed changes in our expenses for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014 compared to the same period in
2013 were as follows:

� Interest expense incurred increased $3.4 million, or 39.8%, from $8.6 million for the three months ended
June 30, 2013 to $12.0 million for the same period in 2014. The increase was a result of an increase in
interest related to the bonds issued in the fourth quarter of 2013 offset by the decrease in interest related to
the pay down of debt.

Interest expense incurred increased $3.1 million, or 14.7%, from $21.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013
to $24.1 million for the same period in 2014. The increase was a result of an increase in interest related to the bonds
issued in the fourth quarter of 2013 offset by the decrease in interest related to the pay down of debt.

� Amortization of deferred financing costs remained materially consistent for the three months ended June 30,
2013 compared to the same period in 2014.

Amortization of deferred financing costs remained materially consistent for the six months ended June 30, 2013
compared to the same period in 2014.

� Depreciation and amortization expense increased $2.3 million, or 28.9%, from $8.1 million for the three
months ended June 30, 2013 to $10.4 million for the same period in 2014. The increase was a result of an
increase in depreciation expense associated with newly acquired facilities and facilities placed into service
during 2013 and 2014.

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $3.9 million, or 23.9%, from $16.1 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2013 to $19.9 million for the same period in 2014. The increase was a result of an increase in depreciation
expense associated with newly acquired facilities and facilities placed into service during 2013 and 2014.

� General and administrative expense increased $2.8 million, or 82.0%, from $3.4 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2013 to $6.3 million for the same period in 2014. This increase was primarily due to an
increase in non-cash stock-based compensation expense related to the 2013 Long-Term Incentive Plan and
an increase in salaries and bonuses as a result of the hiring of additional employees.

General and administrative expense decreased $5.6 million, or 32.5%, from $17.3 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2013 to $11.7 million for the same period in 2014. This decrease was primarily due to $9.7 million of
non-cash stock-based compensation expense that was recorded as a result of the vesting of outstanding options in
connection with the IPO in 2013 compared to $2.6 million of non-cash stock based compensation expense that was
recorded in 2014 related to the 2013 Long-Term Incentive Plan offset by a $2.2 million increase in salaries and
bonuses as a result of the hiring of additional employees.

� Transaction costs increased $0.6 million from $0.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2013 to $1.0
million for the same period in 2014. This increase was primarily due to the acquisition of 10 properties
during the six months ended June 30, 2014 compared to the acquisition of only eight properties during the
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same period in 2013.
Transaction costs increased $1.9 million from $0.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 to $2.6 million for
the same period in 2014. This increase was primarily due to the acquisition of 24 properties during the six months
ended June 30, 2014 compared to the acquisition of only eight properties during the same period in 2013.

� There was no loss on impairment of assets expense for the three months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013.
Loss on impairment of assets expense was $0.9 million and $0 for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013
respectively. The increase was due to a non-cash loss on one facility in the first quarter of 2014 where a portion of the
carrying value was not deemed recoverable.

� Reserve for uncollectible loan and accounts receivable increased $3.5 million from $16,000 for the three
months ended June 30, 2013 to $3.5 million for the same period in 2014. This increase was primarily due to
additional expense incurred to reserve against outstanding loans and other receivable balances related to two
operators.

Reserve for uncollectible loan and accounts receivable increased $3.5 million from $30,000 for the six months ended
June 30, 2013 to $3.5 million for the same period in 2014. This increase was primarily due to additional expense
incurred to reserve against outstanding loans and other receivable balances related to two operators.

� Loss (gain) on sale of assets, net, remained materially consistent for the three months ended June 30, 2013
compared to the same period in 2014.

Loss (gain) on sale of assets, net, remained materially consistent for the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared to
the same period in 2014.
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� Loss on extinguishment of debt increased $0.5 million from $0 for the three months ended June 30, 2013 to
$0.5 million for the same period in 2014. The increase is due to the non-cash write-offs related to the
refinancing of the Revolving Credit Facility in 2014.

Loss on extinguishment of debt decreased $10.5 million, or 95.4%, from $11.0 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2013 to $0.5 million for the same period in 2014. The decrease primarily relates to the non-cash write-offs
related to debt that was settled in conjunction with the IPO in 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We expect to meet our short-term liquidity requirements generally through net cash provided by operations, existing
cash balances and, if necessary, short-term borrowings. We believe that the net cash provided by operations and
availability under our Credit Facility, as defined below, will be adequate to fund our operating requirements, debt
service and the payment of dividends in accordance with REIT requirements of the U.S. federal income tax laws for
the next twelve months. We expect to meet our long-term liquidity requirements, such as scheduled debt maturities,
property acquisitions, new construction and reinvestment projects, through long-term secured and unsecured
borrowings, the issuance of additional equity securities or, in connection with acquisitions of additional properties, the
issuance of OP units of the Partnership.

We intend to repay indebtedness incurred under our Credit Facility from time to time, to provide capacity for
acquisitions or otherwise, out of cash flow and from the proceeds of issuances of unsecured notes, additional shares of
common stock of AVIV and other securities. We intend to invest in additional properties and portfolios as suitable
opportunities arise and adequate sources of financing are available. We are currently evaluating additional potential
investments consistent with the normal course of our business. These potential investments are in various stages of
evaluation with both existing and new operators and include acquisitions, construction projects, capital reinvestment
projects and other investment opportunities. There can be no assurance as to whether or when any portion of these
investments will be completed. Our ability to complete investments is subject to a number of risks and variables,
including our ability to negotiate mutually agreeable terms with the counterparties and our ability to finance the
purchase price. We may not be successful in identifying and consummating suitable acquisitions or investment
opportunities, which may impede our growth and negatively affect our results of operations and may result in the use
of a significant amount of management resources. We expect that future investments in properties will depend on and
will be financed by, in whole or in part, our existing cash, the proceeds from additional issuances of unsecured notes
or shares of common stock of AVIV, or other securities or borrowings (including borrowings under our Credit
Facility).

Cash Flows

Six months ended June 30, 2014 compared to six months ended June 30, 2013:

� Cash provided by operations increased $23.3 million from $21.5 million for the six months ended June 30,
2013 to $44.8 million for the same period in 2014. The increase was primarily due to a $16.1 million
increase in cash from rental income related to properties acquired during 2013 and 2014 and a $5.6 million
decrease in cash used for general and administrative expenses in 2014 during the six months ended June 30,
2014 compared with the same period in 2013.

�
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Cash used in investing activities increased $158.9 million from $41.8 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2013 to $200.7 million for the same period in 2014. This increase was primarily due to the increase
in funds used for the purchase of real estate investments in the six months ended June 30, 2014, as compared
to the same period in 2013.

� Cash provided by financing activities increased $136.5 million from $17.7 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2013 to $154.1 million for the same period in 2014. The increase was primarily due to a decrease of
$188.0 million in net debt borrowings and repayments, offset by a decrease in net public offering proceeds
of $67.0 million in 2014 as compared to the same period in 2013.
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April 2014 Public Offering of Shares of Common Stock of AVIV

On April 9, 2014, AVIV priced its underwritten public offering of 8,000,000 shares of common stock at a public
offering price of $24.10 per share. The underwriters had a 30-day option to purchase up to an additional 1,200,000
shares of common stock, which was exercised in full on April 10, 2014. The Company received net proceeds from the
offering of approximately $211.3 million, after deducting discounts, commissions and other offering costs. On
April 15, 2014, the Company used approximately $118.0 million of the net proceeds from the offering to repay all
outstanding indebtedness under the Revolving Credit Facility (as defined below). The remaining proceeds of
approximately $93.7 million were used for general corporate purposes, including the potential acquisition of
additional properties.

Indebtedness Outstanding

Our indebtedness outstanding consists principally of borrowings under our 2019 Notes and 2021 Notes. We had total
indebtedness of approximately $666.1 million (inclusive of our debt premium) outstanding as of June 30, 2014.
Substantially all of such indebtedness is scheduled to mature in 2016 or thereafter.

As of June 30, 2014, we were in compliance with all of the financial covenants of our outstanding debt and lease
agreements and the indentures governing our 2019 Notes and 2021 Notes.

7 3⁄4% Senior Notes due 2019

In February 2011, April 2011, and March 2012, we, through the Partnership and Aviv Healthcare Capital Corporation,
or the Issuers, issued an aggregate of $400 million of 7 3⁄4% Senior Notes due 2019, which we refer to as the 2019
Notes, in a series of private placements. The Issuers subsequently conducted exchange offers in which all of the 2019
Notes issued in the aforementioned private placements were exchanged for freely tradable notes that have been
registered under the Securities Act. Each of the Issuers is a majority owned subsidiary of AVIV. The obligations
under the 2019 Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly and severally, on an unsecured basis, by AVIV
and certain of our existing and, subject to certain exceptions, future subsidiaries.

The 2019 Notes are unsecured senior obligations of the Issuers and will mature on February 15, 2019. The 2019 Notes
bear interest at a rate of 7.75% per annum, payable semiannually to holders of record at the close of business on the
February 1 or the August 1 immediately preceding the interest payment dates of February 15 and August 15 of each
year. Premiums of approximately $2.75 million and $1.0 million were associated with the offerings of the $100
million of 2019 Notes in April 2011 and the $100 million of 2019 Notes in March 2012, respectively. The premiums
will be amortized as an adjustment to the yield on the 2019 Notes over their term.

The 2019 Notes are redeemable at the option of the Issuers, in whole or in part, at any time, and from time to time, on
or after February 15, 2015, at the redemption prices set forth in the indenture governing the 2019 Notes, plus accrued
and unpaid interest to the applicable redemption date. In addition, prior to February 15, 2015, the Issuers may redeem
all or a portion of the 2019 Notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2019 Notes
redeemed, plus a �make-whole� premium, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the applicable redemption date.

The indenture governing the 2019 Notes contains restrictive covenants that, among other things, restrict the ability of
AVIV, the Issuers and their restricted subsidiaries to: (i) incur or guarantee additional unsecured indebtedness;
(ii) incur or guarantee secured indebtedness; (iii) pay dividends or distributions on, or redeem or repurchase, their
capital stock; (iv) make certain investments or other restricted payments; (v) sell assets; (vi) create liens on their
assets; (vii) enter into transactions with affiliates; (viii) merge or consolidate or sell all or substantially all of their
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assets; and (ix) pay dividends or other amounts to AVIV. The indenture governing the 2019 Notes also provides for
customary events of default, including, but not limited to, the failure to make payments of interest or premium, if any,
on, or principal of, the 2019 Notes, the failure to comply with certain covenants and agreements specified in the
indenture governing the 2019 Notes for a period of time after notice has been provided, the acceleration of other
indebtedness resulting from the failure to pay principal on such other indebtedness prior to its maturity and certain
events of insolvency. If any event of default occurs, the principal of, premium, if any, and accrued interest on all of the
then outstanding 2019 Notes may become due and payable immediately.

6% Senior Notes due 2021

In October 2013, the Issuers issued $250 million of 6% Senior Notes due 2021, or the 2021 Notes, and together with
the 2019 Notes, the Senior Notes, in a private placement. The Issuers subsequently conducted an exchange offer in
which all of the 2021 Notes issued in the aforementioned private placement were exchanged for freely tradable notes
that have been registered under the Securities Act. The obligations under the 2021 Notes are fully and unconditionally
guaranteed, jointly and severally, on an unsecured basis, by AVIV and certain of our existing and, subject to certain
exceptions, future subsidiaries.
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The 2021 Notes are unsecured senior obligations of the Issuers and will mature on October 15, 2021. The 2021 Notes
bear interest at a rate of 6.00% per annum, payable semiannually to holders of record at the close of business on the
April 1 or the October 1 immediately preceding the interest payment dates of April 15 and October 15 of each year.

The 2021 Notes are redeemable at the option of the Issuers, in whole or in part, at any time, and from time to time, on
or after October 15, 2017, at the redemption prices set forth in the indenture governing the 2021 Notes, plus accrued
and unpaid interest to the applicable redemption date. In addition, prior to October 15, 2017, the Issuers may redeem
all or a portion of the 2021 Notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the 2021 Notes
redeemed, plus a �make-whole� premium, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the applicable redemption date. At any
time, or from time to time, on or prior to October 15, 2016, the Issuers may redeem up to 35% of the principal amount
of the 2021 Notes, using the proceeds of specific kinds of equity offerings, at a redemption price of 106% of the
principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the applicable redemption date.

The indenture governing the 2021 Notes contains restrictive covenants that, among other things, restrict the ability of
AVIV, the Issuers and their restricted subsidiaries to: (i) incur or guarantee additional unsecured indebtedness;
(ii) incur or guarantee secured indebtedness; (iii) pay dividends or distributions on, or redeem or repurchase, their
capital stock; (iv) make certain investments or other restricted payments; (v) sell assets; (vi) create liens on their
assets; (vii) enter into transactions with affiliates; (viii) merge or consolidate or sell all or substantially all of their
assets; and (ix) pay dividends or other amounts to AVIV. The indenture governing the 2021 Notes also provides for
customary events of default, including, but not limited to, the failure to make payments of interest or premium, if any,
on, or principal of, the 2021 Notes, the failure to comply with certain covenants and agreements specified in the
indenture governing the 2021 Notes for a period of time after notice has been provided, the acceleration of other
indebtedness resulting from the failure to pay principal on such other indebtedness prior to its maturity, and certain
events of insolvency. If any event of default occurs, the principal of, premium, if any, and accrued interest on all the
then outstanding 2021 Notes may become due and payable immediately.

Credit Facility

On May 14, 2014, we, through the Partnership and Aviv Healthcare Capital Corporation, with certain of our
subsidiaries as guarantors, entered into a $600 million unsecured revolving credit facility with Bank of America, N.A.
(as amended from time to time, the Credit Facility). The Credit Facility has an accordion feature that may allow us to
increase the availability thereunder by an additional $200 million to a total availability of $800 million. The Credit
Facility had an outstanding balance of $0 as of June 30, 2014.

On each payment date, we pay interest only in arrears on any outstanding principal balance of the Credit Facility. The
Credit Facility bears interest at the rate of LIBOR plus a margin of 170 basis points to 225 basis points, depending on
our leverage ratio, and the applicable margin was 190 basis points as of June 30, 2014. If the Partnership achieves an
investment grade rating on senior unsecured long-term debt from at least two of S&P, Fitch and Moody�s, or
investment grade status, then the margin reduces to 90 basis points to 170 basis points, depending on the quality of the
investment grade rating. The initial term of the Credit Facility expires on May 14, 2018 with a one-year extension
option provided that certain conditions precedent are satisfied. The proceeds from the Credit Facility are available for
general corporate purposes.

The Credit Facility may be repaid from time to time at our option, and amounts repaid under the Credit Facility may
be redrawn. Prior to when the Partnership achieves investment grade status, an unused fee equal to 25 basis points to
35 basis points of the unused balance on the Credit Facility is due quarterly. When the Partnership achieves
investment grade status, a facility fee equal to 12.5 basis points to 30 basis points on the aggregate committed amount
under the Credit Facility is due quarterly.
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The amount available for us to borrow and our ability to borrow under the Credit Facility is subject to our ongoing
compliance with a number of customary restrictive covenants, including:

� a leverage ratio (defined as consolidated total indebtedness to total asset value) of less than 60%,

� an unencumbered leverage ratio (defined as consolidated total unsecured indebtedness to total unencumbered
asset value) of less than or equal to 60%,

� a consolidated secured leverage ratio (defined as consolidated total secured indebtedness to total asset value)
of less than or equal to 30%,

� a consolidated unsecured interest coverage ratio (defined as net revenue from unencumbered assets to
interest expense on unsecured indebtedness) equal to or greater than 2.00 to 1.00,

� a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio (defined as consolidated earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortization to consolidated fixed charges) of 1.50:1.00,
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� a minimum tangible net worth equal to at least $539.2 million plus 75% of the net proceeds of any additional
equity issuances, and

� if the Partnership has not then achieved investment grade status, secured recourse indebtedness less than or
equal to 10% of the consolidated total asset value.

Under the Credit Facility, our distributions may not exceed the greater of (i) 95% of our Adjusted Funds From
Operations, as defined therein, or (ii) the amount required for us to qualify and maintain our status as a REIT. If a
default or event of default occurs and is continuing, we may be precluded from making certain distributions.

Other Loans

In June 2012, a wholly-owned indirect subsidiary of AVIV assumed a HUD loan with a balance of approximately
$11.5 million. Interest is a fixed rate of 5.00%. The loan originated in November 2009 with a maturity date of
October 1, 2044 and is based on a 35-year amortization schedule. A premium of $2.5 million was associated with the
assumption of debt and will be amortized as an adjustment to interest expense on the HUD loan over its term. As of
June 30, 2014, the balance of such loan was $11.1 million (excluding $2.4 million of net debt premium balance).

See Note 8, Debt, in the notes to the unaudited consolidated financial statements included in this report for additional
information.

Contractual Obligations

The following table shows the amounts due in connection with the contractual obligations described below as of
June 30, 2014 (including future interest payments):

Payments Due by Period
Less
than

1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years

More
than

5 Years Total
(in thousands)

Secured loans $ 716 $ 1,431 $ 1,431 $ 18,127 $ 21,705
6% Senior Notes Due 2021 (1) 15,000 30,000 30,000 283,750 358,750
7 3/4% Senior Notes due 2019 (2) 31,000 62,000 451,667 �  544,667

Total $ 46,716 $ 93,431 $ 483,098 $ 301,877 $ 925,122

(1) Reflects $250 million outstanding for our 2021 Notes.
(2) Reflects $400 million outstanding for our 2019 Notes.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of June 30, 2014, the Company did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements.

Presentation of Non-GAAP Financial Information
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In addition to the results of operations presented above, we are presenting certain supplemental financial measures that
are derived on the basis of methodologies other than in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting
principles, or GAAP. The �non-GAAP� financial measures used herein include FFO, Normalized FFO, AFFO, EBITDA
and Adjusted EBITDA. We derive these measures as follows:

� FFO is defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trusts, or NAREIT, as net income
(computed in accordance with GAAP), excluding gains and losses from sales of property (net) and
impairments of depreciated real estate, plus real estate depreciation and amortization (excluding amortization
of deferred financing costs) and after adjustments for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures.
Applying the NAREIT definition to our financial statements results in FFO representing net income before
depreciation and amortization, loss on impairment, and gain (loss) on sale of assets (net).

� Normalized FFO represents FFO before loss on extinguishment of debt, reserves for uncollectible loan
receivables, transaction costs and severance costs.
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� AFFO represents Normalized FFO before amortization of deferred financing costs, non-cash stock
(unit)-based compensation, straight-line rental income (net) and rental income from intangible amortization
(net).

� EBITDA represents net income before interest expense (net), amortization of deferred financing costs and
depreciation and amortization.

� Adjusted EBITDA represents EBITDA before impairment of assets, gain (loss) on sale of assets (net),
transaction costs, write off of straight-line rents, non-cash stock-based compensation, loss on extinguishment
of debt and reserves for uncollectible loan receivables.

Our management uses FFO, Normalized FFO, AFFO, EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA as important supplemental
measures of our operating performance and liquidity. FFO is intended to exclude GAAP historical cost depreciation
and amortization of real estate and related assets, which assumes that the value of real estate assets diminishes ratably
over time. Historically, however, real estate values have risen or fallen with market conditions. The term FFO was
designed by the real estate industry to address this issue and as an indicator of a company�s ability to incur and service
debt. Because FFO, Normalized FFO, and AFFO exclude depreciation and amortization unique to real estate,
impairment, gains and losses from property dispositions and extraordinary items and because EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA exclude certain non-cash charges and adjustments and amounts spent on interest and taxes, they provide our
management with performance measures that, when compared year over year or with other REITs, reflect the impact
to operations from trends in occupancy rates, rental rates, operating costs, development activities and, with respect to
FFO, Normalized FFO, and AFFO, interest costs, in each case providing perspectives not immediately apparent from
net income. In addition, we believe that FFO, Normalized FFO, AFFO, EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are
frequently used by securities analysts, investors and other interested parties in the evaluation of REITs.

We offer these measures to assist the users of our financial statements in assessing our financial performance and
liquidity under GAAP, but these measures are non-GAAP measures and should not be considered measures of
liquidity, alternatives to net income or indicators of any other performance measure determined in accordance with
GAAP, nor are they indicative of funds available to fund our cash needs, including our ability to make payments on
our indebtedness. In addition, our calculations of these measures are not necessarily comparable to similar measures
as calculated by other companies that do not use the same definition or implementation guidelines or interpret the
standards differently from us. Investors should not rely on these measures as a substitute for any GAAP measure,
including net income, cash flows provided by operating activities or revenues.

Three Months Ended
June 30,

Six Months Ended

June 30,

Other Information
2014 2013 2014 2013

(in thousands)
Net cash flows provided by operating activities $ 28,603 $ 25,465 $ 44,847 $ 21,498
Net cash flows used in investing activities (90,061) (35,722) (200,694) (41,780) 
Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing
activities 91,209 (21,725) 154,139 17,672
FFO (1) 18,908 21,728 40,739 18,023
Normalized FFO (1) 23,668 22,199 47,044 29,704
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AFFO (1) 25,957 21,186 49,531 36,846
EBITDA (2) 31,865 30,886 65,932 40,790
Adjusted EBITDA (2) 39,525 31,621 77,124 62,824
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(1) The following table is a reconciliation of our net income to FFO, Normalized FFO, and AFFO:

Three Months
Ended

June 30,
Six Months Ended

June 30,

Funds from Operations
2014 2013 2014 2013
(in thousands) (in thousands)

Net income $ 8,460 $ 13,404 $ 19,916 $ 1,965
Depreciation and amortization 10,439 8,099 19,948 16,097
Loss on impairment �  �  862 �  
Loss (gain) on sale of assets, net 9 225 13 (39) 

Funds from Operations 18,9087 21,728 40,739 18,023
Loss on extinguishment of debt 501 �  501 10,974
Reserve for uncollectible loan receivables 3,211 11 3,211 11
Transaction costs 1,048 460 2,593 696

Normalized Funds from Operations 23,668 22,199 47,044 29,704
Amortization of deferred financing costs 975 805 1,956 1,706
Non-cash stock-based compensation 1,511 39 2,632 10,392
Straight-line rental income, net (58) (1,491) (1,694) (4,224) 
Rental income from intangible amortization, net (139) (366) (407) (732) 

Adjusted Funds from Operations $ 25,957 $ 21,186 $ 49,531 $ 36,846

The following table is a reconciliation of our cash flows provided by operating activities to FFO, Normalized FFO,
and AFFO:

Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013

Net cash flows provided by operating activities $ 44,847 $ 21,498
Reserve for uncollectible loan and other receivables (3,500) (30) 
Non-cash stock-based compensation (2,632) (10,392) 
Amortization of deferred financing costs (1,956) (1,706) 
Straight-line rental income, net 1,694 4,224
Rental income from intangible amortization, net 407 732
Changes in operating assets and liabilities 2,109 8,610
Non-cash loss on extinguishment of debt (494) (5,161) 
Other 264 248

Funds from Operations 40,739 18,023
Loss on extinguishment of debt 501 10,974
Reserve for uncollectible loan receivables 3,211 11
Transaction costs 2,593 696
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Normalized Funds from Operations 47,044 29,704
Amortization of deferred financing costs 1,956 1,706
Non-cash stock-based compensation 2,632 10,392
Straight-line rental income, net (1,694) (4,224) 
Rental income from intangible amortization, net (407) (732) 

Adjusted Funds from Operations $ 49,531 $ 36,846
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The following table is a reconciliation of our net income to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA:

Three Months Ended June 30,Six Months Ended June 30,
2014 2013 2014 2013

Net income $ 8,460 $ 13,404 $ 19,916 $ 1,965
Interest expense, net 11,991 8,578 24,112 21,022
Amortization of deferred financing costs 975 805 1,956 1,706
Depreciation and amortization 10,439 8,099 19,948 16,097

EBITDA 31,865 30,886 65,932 40,790
Loss on impairment �  �  862 �  
Loss (gain) on sale of assets, net 9 225 13 (39) 
Transaction costs 1,048 460 2,593 696
Write-off of straight-line rents 1,380 �  1,380 �  
Non-cash stock-based compensation 1,511 39 2,632 10,392
Loss on extinguishment of debt 501 �  501 10,974
Reserve for uncollectible loan receivables 3,211 11 3,211 11

Adjusted EBITDA $ 39,525 $ 31,621 $ 77,124 $ 62,824

The following table is a reconciliation of our cash flows provided by operating activities to EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA:

Six Months Ended

June 30,
2014 2013

(in thousands)
Net cash flows provided by operating activities $ 44,847 $ 21,498
Interest expense, net 24,112 21,022
Straight-line rental income, net 1,694 4,224
Rental income from intangible amortization, net 407 732
Non-cash stock-based compensation (2,632) (10,392) 
(Loss) gain on sale of assets, net (13) 39
Loss on impairment (862) �  
Reserve for uncollectible loan and other receivables (3,500) (30) 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities 2,109 8,610
Non-cash loss on extinguishment of debt (494) (5,161) 
Other 264 248

EBITDA 65,932 40,790
Loss on impairment 862 �  
Loss (gain) on sale of assets, net 13 (39) 
Transaction costs 2,593 696
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Write-off of straight-line rents 1,380 �  
Non-cash stock-based compensation 2,632 10,392
Loss on extinguishment of debt 501 10,974
Reserve for uncollectible loan receivables 3,211 11

Adjusted EBITDA $ 77,124 $ 62,824

Net cash flow used in investing activities ($ 200,694) ($ 41,780) 
Net cash flow provided by financing activities $ 154,139 $ 17,672
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Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
We are exposed to various market risks, including potential losses arising from adverse changes in interest rates.
Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors, including governmental monetary policies, domestic and global
economic and political conditions, and other factors which are beyond our control.

As of June 30, 2014, none of our consolidated borrowings bore interest at variable rates. We do not currently use
interest rate hedging contracts, including swaps, caps and floors, to manage our interest rate risk. The Company
believes that it has effectively managed interest rate exposure because, as of June 30, 2014, 100% of the Company�s
indebtedness was fixed rate debt.

Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures of AVIV. Under the supervision of and with the participation of
AVIV�s management, including its Chief Executive Officer and its Chief Financial Officer, AVIV evaluated the
effectiveness of its disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange
Act) as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Based on this evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of AVIV have concluded that AVIV�s disclosure controls and
procedures were effective as of June 30, 2014 to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be
disclosed by AVIV in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized
and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC�s rules and forms, and is accumulated and communicated to
AVIV�s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting of AVIV. During the quarter ended June 30, 2014, there
have been no changes in AVIV�s internal control over financial reporting that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, its internal control over financial reporting.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures of the Partnership. Under the supervision of and with the
participation of the Partnership�s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer
of AVIV, the general partner of the Partnership, the Partnership evaluated the effectiveness of its disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered
by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. Based on this evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer of AVIV have concluded that the Partnership�s disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of June 30,
2014 to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by the Partnership in the reports that it
files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods
specified in the SEC�s rules and forms, and is accumulated and communicated to the Partnership�s management,
including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer of AVIV, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting of the Partnership. During the quarter ended June 30,
2014, there have been no changes in the Partnership�s internal control over financial reporting that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, its internal control over financial reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
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Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
The Company is involved in various unresolved legal actions and proceedings, which arise in the normal course of our
business. Although the outcome of a particular proceeding can never be predicted, we do not believe that the result of
any of these matters will have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, liquidity, or financial
position.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS
There have been no material changes to the risk factors disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2013 and Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2014.

Item 6. EXHIBITS.
The Exhibit Index is incorporated by reference herein.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, each
registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

AVIV REIT, INC.

August 5, 2014 By: /S/ DONNA M. O�NEILL

Name: Donna M. O�Neill
Title: Chief Information and Accounting Officer

(principal accounting officer)

AVIV HEALTHCARE PROPERTIES LIMITED

PARTNERSHIP

By: Aviv REIT, Inc., its general partner

August 5, 2014 By: /S/ DONNA M. O�NEILL

Name: Donna M. O�Neill
Title: Chief Information and Accounting Officer

(principal accounting officer)
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EXHIBIT INDEX

  10.1 Credit Agreement, dated as of May 14, 2014, among Aviv Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership and
Aviv Healthcare Capital Corporation, as borrowers, Aviv REIT, Inc. and the other Guarantors party thereto,
as guarantors, the financial institutions party thereto, as lenders, and Bank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent and a lender, included as Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the SEC on May 16, 2014 and incorporated herein by reference thereto.

  31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Aviv REIT, Inc. pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

  31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Aviv REIT, Inc. pursuant to Rule
13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

  31.3 Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Aviv REIT, Inc., in its capacity as the general partner of Aviv
Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

  31.4 Certification of Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Aviv REIT, Inc., in its capacity as the general
partner of Aviv Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

  32.1 Joint Certification of Principal Executive and Financial Officers of Aviv REIT, Inc. pursuant to 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

  32.2 Joint Certification of Principal Executive and Financial Officers of Aviv REIT, Inc., in its capacity as the
general partner of Aviv Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

101 Sections of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the three and six months ended June 30, 2014, formatted
in XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Language): (i) Unaudited Consolidated Balance Sheets for each of
Aviv REIT, Inc. and Aviv Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership; (ii) Unaudited Consolidated
Statements of Operations for each of Aviv REIT, Inc. and Aviv Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership;
(iii) Unaudited Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for Aviv REIT, Inc. and Unaudited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Partners� Capital for Aviv Healthcare Properties Limited Partnership;
(iv) Unaudited Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of Aviv REIT, Inc. and Aviv Healthcare
Properties Limited Partnership; and (v) Notes to Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements.
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